
The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community’s quality of life through                                        
positive experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts. 

 

 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

REMOTE MEETING HELD VIA TELECONFERENCE 
(As permitted by Public Act 101-0640) 

 
The President of the Board of Commissioners has determined that an in-person meeting or a meeting 
conducted pursuant to the Open Meetings Act is not practical or prudent because of the COVID-19 disaster. 
 
Citizens may participate in the zoom meeting by going to the following web address: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84904946682?pwd=b0dtNHNmelpIYit1cTg1cXdlSXRUZz09 
 
For online video access, please use the following Meeting ID and Password when prompted: 
Meeting ID: 849 0494 6682 
Password: 938149 
 
Alternatively, the meeting may be accessed by telephone at: 
1-312-626-6799, If prompted for the following items, please enter:  
Meeting ID: 849 0494 6682, followed by the # symbol 
Password: 938149, followed by the # symbol 
 
Citizens will be offered an opportunity to speak to the Board during the public comment portion. To facilitate 
this and not have individuals speaking over one another, the Park District kindly requests that individuals 
wishing to address the Board via the conference line during public comment notify the Park District via email, 
as noted below, of their intent to address the Board.  Alternatively, citizens may submit public comments by 
email prior to the Board meeting, to be announced by the Park Board President during the public comment 
portion of the meeting. Email submissions (notice of intent to speak or comment via email) should be 
submitted by Noon on Wednesday, September 8, 2021, and sent to joe.deluce@champaignparks.org.   
 

Wednesday, September 8, 2021 
7:00 P.M. 

 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
B. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
 
C. COMMUNICATIONS 
 
D. TREASURER’S REPORT 
 

1. Consideration of Acceptance of the Treasurer’s Report for the Month of August 2021. (Roll Call Vote) 
 
E. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
 

1. General Announcements 
 
F. COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 

1. Champaign Parks Foundation 
 
G. REPORT OF OFFICERS 
 

1. Attorney’s Report 
 

2. President’s Report 
 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84904946682?pwd=b0dtNHNmelpIYit1cTg1cXdlSXRUZz09
mailto:joe.deluce@champaignparks.org


The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community’s quality of life through                                        
positive experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts. 

 

Regular Board Meeting 
September 8, 2021 
Page 2 
 
H. CONSENT AGENDA 

All items appearing below are considered routine by the Board and shall be enacted by one motion. If 
discussion is desired, that item shall be removed and discussed separately. (Roll Call Vote) 

 
1. Approval of Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting, August 11, 2021 
2. Approval of Minutes of the Executive Session, August 11, 2021 
3. Approval of Minutes of the Special Board Meeting, August 25, 2021 
4. Approval of Minutes of the Executive Session, August 25, 2021 
5. Approval of Resolution Ratifying Change Orders 3, 5, and 7-11 for the Martens Center Construction 

 
I. NEW BUSINESS 

1. Approval of Disbursements  
Staff recommends approval of disbursements for the period beginning August 11, 2021 and ending 
September 08, 2021. (Roll Call Vote) 
 

2. Approval of a Resolution Initiating the 2021 General Obligation Bond Issue 
Staff recommends that the Champaign Park District Board of Commissioners approve a resolution 
stating the Park District’s need and intent to issue $1,212,500 of General Obligation Bonds for 
FYE2022. (Roll Call Vote) 

 
3. Approval of a Resolution Setting a Public Hearing on Proposed Bond Issue 

Staff recommends that the Champaign Park District Board of Commissioners approve a resolution to 
set a Public Hearing for Wednesday, October 13, 2021 at 7:00 p.m. at the Bresnan Meeting Center, 
which can be can be heard and participated in live by the public utilizing Zoom call in information that 
will be posted on the Champaign Park District's website, to discuss the issuance of $1,212,500 of 
General Obligation Bonds. (Roll Call Vote) 

 
4. Approval of Recreational Trail Easement for Parker Glen Trail  

The District staff recommends the Park Board vote to approve the recreational trail easement for the 
800-foot Parker Glen Trail that connects to the North Champaign Trail. (Roll Call Vote) 
 

5. Approval of the Induction of Olympic and Paralvmpic Athletes into the Olympic Tribute  
Staff recommends the Board approve the induction of Olympic Athletes: Justin Spring and Michelle 
Bartsch-Hackley into the Olympic Tribute at Dodds Park, and Paralympic Athletes: Adam Bleakney, 
Aaron Pike, and Stephanie Wheeler. Staff also recommend adding “2020” to the squares within the 
Paralympic Tribute of five (5) Paralympics Athletes: Tatyana Mc Fadden, Amanda McGrory, Brian 
Siemann, Nichole Millage, and Joshua George, who are already inducted into the Paralympic Tribute 
are competing in the Tokyo Games. (Roll Call Vote) 

 
6. Approval of Acceptance of Interim GASB 75 Actuarial Valuation Report for FYE2021 Ending April 30, 

2021 
Staff recommends the Board accept the FYE2021 GASB 75 Actuarial Valuation report as 
presented. (Roll Call Vote) 

 
7. Approval of Adoption of Ordinance No. 653: Declaring Personal Property as Surplus  

Staff recommends that the Board adopt Ordinance No.653, an ordinance providing for the disposal of 
personal property owned by the Champaign Park District of Champaign County. (Roll Call Vote) 

 
8. Approval of Adoption of Ordinance No. 654: Annexing Territory  

Staff recommends approval of Ordinance No. 654 annexing territory pursuant to petition (1216 W. 
Windsor Road, Champaign). (Roll Call Vote) 

 



The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community’s quality of life through                                        
positive experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts. 

 

Regular Board Meeting 
September 8, 2021 
Page 3 
 
J. DISCUSSION ITEMS 

1. Pickleball Complex  
 

K. COMMENTS FROM COMMISSIONERS 
 
L. ADJOURN 



CHAMPAIGN PARK DISTRICT 
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

BOARD OF PARK COMMISSIONERS 
August 11, 2021 

 
The Champaign Park District Board of Commissioners held the Regular Board Meeting on Wednesday, 
August 11, 2021 at 7:00 p.m. at the Bresnan Meeting Center, 706 Kenwood Road, Champaign, Illinois, 
and online due to President Miller’s determination that an in-person meeting or a meeting conducted 
pursuant to the Open Meetings Act was not practical or prudent because of the COVID-19 disaster. The 
Regular Board Meeting occurred pursuant to published notice duly given. President Miller presided over 
the meeting. The twelve individuals identified below were physically present at the meeting. Citizens 
were given the opportunity to participate in the teleconference at the web address: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89438812005?pwd=blVFTkVyKzVOcHk4bkhOS3hFK3N3dz09 or by calling 
312-626-6799. Citizens were also offered the opportunity to submit comments or questions by email 
prior to the meeting. Those comments were to be announced by President Miller during the public 
comment portion of the meeting. Email submissions were solicited from the public through a notice of 
intent to speak or comment to be submitted by noon on Wednesday, August 11, 2021 to be sent to the 
Executive Director of the Park District at: joe.deluce@champaignparks.org. There were no email 
comments or questions submitted by citizens for consideration by the Board. 
 
Present in person: President Kevin J. Miller, Vice President Craig W. Hays, Commissioner Barbara J. 
Kuhl, Treasurer Brenda Timmons, Joseph C. DeLuce, Executive Director, and Jarrod Scheunemann, 
Secretary and Assistant to the Executive Director. 
 
Present electronically: Commissioners Jane L. Solon, Timothy P. McMahon, and Attorney Guy C. Hall. 
 
Staff present in person: Andrea Wallace, Director of Finance, Andrew Weiss, Director of Planning, 
Tammy Hoggatt, Director of HR, Risk and IT, and Steven Bentz, Director of the Virginia Theatre. 
 
Staff present electronically: Dan Olson, Director of Operations. 
 
Neil Strack and Brian Kesler from Architectural Expressions were present in-person at the meeting. 
 
Jean Flood, a representative from the League of Women’s Voters, Don Block, Hal, and Chris Rogan 
also attended the meeting electronically. 
 
Call to Order 
President Miller called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.  
 
Presentation 
Mr. Strack from Architectural Expressions presented pickleball complex site plans for three potential 
locations. These site plans included new options for pickleball courts at Zahnd Park or Seaman Field 
(Centennial Park), as well as an option of refurbishing existing tennis courts into pickleball courts at 
Parkland College. The total number of courts and upgraded amenities varied by location. Mr. Strack 
also shared cost estimates and a pros/cons list for each location as prepared by his firm and Park 
District staff. 
 
Discussion and clarifications ensued related to site drainage, access to restrooms, parking, and 
pickleball court size regulations.   
 
Comments from the Public 
Mr. Don Block commented that Zahnd Park had originally been the preferred location of the pickleball 
players who had been surveyed in Champaign. He noted that off-street parking and access to 
restrooms were key priorities. After reviewing the potential site plans, Mr. Block noted that the 
Champaign pickleball players now prioritized a pickleball complex at the Seaman Field location if 
parking is included in the first phase of the project.  
 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89438812005?pwd=blVFTkVyKzVOcHk4bkhOS3hFK3N3dz09
mailto:joe.deluce@champaignparks.org


  
Minutes of the August 11, 2021 Regular Board Meeting | Page 2 

Mr. Chris Rogan stated that Seaman Field was the preferred location for a new pickleball complex. He 
commented that off-street, accessible parking is a priority for the complex.  
 
Neil Strack, Brian Kesler, Don Block, Hal, and Chris Rogan departed the meeting at 7:37 p.m. 
 
Communications 
President Miller called attention to the communications, which had been distributed to the Board 
members by email.  
 
Treasurer’s Report 
Treasurer Timmons presented the Treasurer’s Report noting revenue and expenses for the month of 
July 2021. She stated the Park District’s finances had been reviewed and were found to be in 
appropriate order.  
 
Commissioner Kuhl requested more information about the deposit insurance and allocated collateral for 
reserve funds. Ms. Wallace responded that she will investigate and report on the fund.  
 
Commissioner Hays made a motion to accept the Treasurer’s Report for the month of July 2021. The 
motion was seconded by Commissioner Solon. Upon roll call, the vote was as follows: Commissioner 
Kuhl – yes; Commissioner McMahon – yes; Vice President Hays – yes; President Miller – yes; and 
Commissioner Solon – yes. The motion passed 5-0. 
 
Executive Director’s Report 
 
General Announcements 
Mr. DeLuce reported that staff members are organizing an event to commemorate the installation of the 
last beam at the Martens Center. At the event, the Board and key stakeholders will be invited to sign the 
beam before it is installed. Staff members are working with Broeren Russo to coordinate the date and 
time of the event.  
 
Mr. DeLuce invited the Board to participate in a strategic planning exercise on Wednesday, October 13, 
2021, at 5:30 p.m. prior to its Regular Meeting at 7:00 p.m. 
 
Mr. DeLuce also made the Board aware that staff is planning an induction ceremony for the Olympic 
Tribute in October, 2021. Potential inductees include Justin Spring and Michelle Bartsch-Hackley. 
 
Committee and Liaison Reports 
 
Champaign Parks Foundation 
President Miller reported that the Foundation is investigating an event to precede the showing of the Bat 
at the Virginia Theatre in December. He also notified the Board that the Foundation will engage in a 
training session in September.  
 
Report of Officers 
 
Attorney’s Report 
Attorney Hall reported that he is addressing routine ongoing matters. He highlighted various items 
related to the revision of an Intergovernmental Agreement with Unit 4 related to the Spalding Park 
tennis courts refurbishment/addition.  
 
President’s Report 
None. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  
Minutes of the August 11, 2021 Regular Board Meeting | Page 3 

 
Consent Agenda 
President Miller stated that all items on the Consent Agenda are considered routine and shall be acted 
upon by one motion. If discussion is desired regarding any item, that item shall be removed and 
discussed separately.  
 

1. Approval of Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting, July 14, 2021  
2. Approval of Minutes of the Executive Session Minutes, July 14, 2021  
3. Approval of Minutes of the Special Board Meeting, July 28, 2021  
4. Approval of Minutes of the Executive Session, July 28, 2021  
5. Approval of a Resolution Ratifying Change Order No 4 for the Martens Center Construction  
6. Approval of a Resolution Authorizing Change Order No 6 for the Martens Center Construction 

 
Commissioner Kuhl made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda. The motion was seconded by Vice 
President Hays. Upon roll call, the vote was as follows: Commissioner McMahon – yes; Commissioner 
Solon – yes; Vice President Hays – yes; President Miller – yes; and Commissioner Kuhl - yes. The 
motion passed 5-0. 
 
New Business 
 

1. Approval of Disbursements  
Commissioner Kuhl made a motion to approve the list of disbursements for the period beginning July 
14, 2021 and ending August 11, 2021. The motion was seconded by Vice President Hays. Upon roll 
call, the vote was as follows: Vice President Hays – yes; Commissioner Kuhl – yes; Commissioner 
Solon – yes; Commissioner McMahon – yes; and President Miller – yes. The motion passed 5-0. 
 

2. Approval of Agreement for Paper Recycling and Shredding Services 
Mr. Wallace presented the report. She stated that the Board is reviewing this agreement due to its three 
(3) year terms. Ms. Wallace highlighted the benefits and cost savings related to the agreement.  

 
Commissioner Solon made a motion authorizing the Executive Director to execute a 3-year agreement 
with Midwest Fiber/Confidential On-Site Paper Shredding (COPS) for facility paper shredding services 
with an option to renew for one additional 3-year term. The motion was seconded by Vice President 
Hays. Upon roll call, the vote was as follows: Commissioner Kuhl – yes; President Miller – yes; Vice 
President Hays – yes; Commissioner Solon – yes; and Commissioner McMahon – yes. The motion 
passed 5-0. 
 

3. Approval of Application for National Endowment for the Arts (NEA) Grant for the Virginia 
Theatre  

Mr. Bentz reported that funding from the American Rescue Plan is earmarked for distribution through 
the National Endowment for the Arts grant program. No local match is required and grant awards can 
be applied broadly to cover expenses such as artist fees, operations, and marketing. 
 
Commissioner Kuhl requested clarification about the terms of payment for the grant award. Mr. Bentz 
responded that the Park District would be reimbursed for expenses. 
 
Vice President Hays made a motion to authorize staff to apply for the American Rescue Plan Grant in 
the amount of $150,000.00 from the National Endowment for the Arts in support of house-presented 
events at the Virginia Theatre. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Kuhl. Upon roll call, the 
vote was as follows: Commissioner Solon – yes; Vice President Hays – yes; Commissioner Kuhl – yes; 
President Miller – yes; and Commissioner McMahon – yes. The motion passed 5-0. 
 
Comments from Commissioners 
Commissioner McMahon shared that his spouse had played tennis at Hessel Park and she noted that 
the park was well maintained.  
 



  
Minutes of the August 11, 2021 Regular Board Meeting | Page 4 

Commissioner Kuhl requested recommendations from staff regarding the potential development of a 
pickleball complex including the recommended number of courts, desired amenities, and programming 
options. Discussion ensued. 
 
Commissioner Kuhl also requested that staff investigate the Park District’s request for funding from the 
City and County related to the American Rescue Plan.  
 
Executive Session 
Commissioner Kuhl moved pursuant to the basis set forth below to convene into Executive Session. 
The motion was seconded by Vice President Hays. Upon roll call, the vote was as follows:  
Commissioner McMahon – yes; Vice President Hays – yes; President Miller – yes; Commissioner Solon 
– yes; and Commissioner Kuhl - yes. The motion passed 5-0. The Board convened into Executive 
Session under the Illinois Open Meetings Act, specifically 5 ILCS 120/2(c)(11) Litigation, when an action 
against, affecting or on behalf of the particular public body has been filed and is pending before a court 
or administrative tribunal, or when the public body finds that an action is probable or imminent, in which 
case the basis for the finding shall be recorded and entered into the minutes of the closed meeting. 
 
Return to Regular Meeting 
Following the adjournment of the Executive Session, the Board reconvened in open meeting. 
 
Adjourn 
There being no further business to come before the Board, Vice President Hays made a motion to 
adjourn the meeting. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Kuhl. Upon roll call, the vote was as 
follows: Commissioner Solon – yes; Vice President Hays – yes; Commissioner McMahon – yes; 
President Miller – yes; and Commissioner Kuhl - yes. The motion passed 5-0 and the meeting was 
adjourned at 8:35 p.m.  
 
Approved 
 
 
_____________________________________ ___________________________________ 
Kevin J. Miller, President    Jarrod Scheunemann, Secretary 



CHAMPAIGN PARK DISTRICT 
MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL BOARD MEETING 

BOARD OF PARK COMMISSIONERS 
August 25, 2021 

 
The Champaign Park District Board of Commissioners held a Special Board Meeting on Wednesday, 
August 25, 2021 at 5:30 p.m. at the Bresnan Meeting Center, 706 Kenwood Road, Champaign, Illinois, 
and online due to President Miller’s determination that an in-person meeting or a meeting conducted 
pursuant to the Open Meetings Act was not practical or prudent because of the COVID-19 disaster. The 
Special Board Meeting occurred pursuant to published notice duly given. President Miller presided over 
the meeting. The twelve individuals identified below were physically present at the meeting with 
appropriate social distancing. Citizens were given the opportunity to participate in the teleconference at 
the web address: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89438812005?pwd=blVFTkVyKzVOcHk4bkhOS3hFK3N3dz09 or by calling 
312-626-6799. Citizens were also offered the opportunity to submit comments or questions by email 
prior to the meeting. Those comments were to be announced by President Miller during the public 
comment portion of the meeting. Email submissions were solicited from the public through a notice of 
intent to speak or comment to be submitted by noon on Wednesday, August 25, 2021 to the Executive 
Director of the Park District at: joe.deluce@champaignparks.org. There were no email comments or 
questions submitted by citizens for consideration by the Board. 
 
Present in person: President Kevin J. Miller, Vice President Craig W. Hays, Commissioner Jane L. 
Solon, Attorney Guy C. Hall, Treasurer Brenda Timmons, Joseph C. DeLuce, Executive Director, and 
Jarrod Scheunemann, Secretary and Assistant to the Executive Director. 
 
Present electronically: Commissioner Barbara J. Kuhl.  
 
Absent: Commissioner Timothy P. McMahon 
 
Staff present in person: Andrew Weiss, Director of Planning, and Tammy Hoggatt, Director of HR, Risk 
and IT. 
 
Staff present electronically: Jameel Jones, Director of Recreation and Jimmy Gleason, Director of 
Revenue Facilities. 
 
Visitors present in person: Jayne DeLuce of Visit Champaign County and Barbara Suggs-Mason and 
Angela Rivers of the Champaign County African American Cultural & Heritage Trail initiative. 
 
Jean Flood of the League of Women’s Voters were also electronically in attendance. 
 
Call to Order 
Vice President Hays called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. President Miller arrived momentarily 
thereafter. 
 
Presentation 
Jayne DeLuce from Visit Champaign County introduced Barbara Suggs-Mason and Angela Rivers from 
the Champaign County African American Culture & Heritage Trail initiative.  
 
Ms. Suggs-Mason and Ms. Rivers outlined plans to develop a free and accessible African American 
Culture and Heritage trail with related bus tour, school curriculum, and traveling exhibit. The Champaign 
Rotary Club, Scott Burge from Farnsworth Group, Preston Jackson, a sculptor, Ms. Suggs-Mason, and 
Ms. Rivers have discussed conceptual designs for a Skelton Park trail segment to honor African-
American musicians from Champaign. Ms. Suggs-Mason and Ms. Rivers anticipate that the installation 
of the trail will coincide with City improvements to the Boneyard Creek at Skelton Park. 
 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89438812005?pwd=blVFTkVyKzVOcHk4bkhOS3hFK3N3dz09
mailto:joe.deluce@champaignparks.org


  
Minutes of the August 25, 2021 Special Board Meeting | Page 2 

Discussion and clarifications ensued related to the request for support from the Park District for the 
initiative.  
 
 
Comments from the Public 
None. 
 
New Business 
 

1. Approval of Underground Electrical Easement for Ameren Illinois at the Martens Center and 
Human Kinetics Park   

Mr Weiss reported that Ameren Illinois had requested an underground electrical easement at the 
Martens Center and Human Kinetics Park property to supply power to the Martens Center. He stated 
that Park District staff corresponded with staff from the National Park Service (NPS) and would be in 
touch with Illinois Department of Natural Resources (IDNR) administration to seek their approval for the 
easement for land that had been purchased with funding support from the Land, Water, and 
Conservation Fund (LWCF). Discussion and clarification about future maintenance obligations ensued. 
 
Attorney Hall stated that he had recommended revisions to the terms of the easement to reduce the 
length of the agreement to ninety-nine (99) years according to Park District Ordinance 459. He noted 
that the IDNR is amenable to the easement, but it prefers utilizing a license agreement or other form of 
agreement with an express duration. 
 
Mr. Weiss clarified that no work would be completed by Ameren Illinois until an easement is finalized.  
 
Commissioner Solon requested more information to clarify the easement’s timeline. Mr. Weiss 
responded that he expected to receive approval from the IDNR within one week. 
 
Commissioner Hays made a motion to approve entering into an underground electrical easement with 
Ameren Illinois at the Martens Center and Human Kinetics Park subject to the consent of the Illinois 
Department of Natural Resources (IDNR). The motion was seconded by Commissioner Solon. Upon roll 
call, the vote was as follows: Commissioner Kuhl – yes; Commissioner Solon – yes; President Miller – 
yes; and Vice President Hays – yes. The motion passed 4-0. 
 

2. Approval of Apply for an Open Space Land Acquisition and Development (OSLAD) Grant for a 
Pickleball Complex  

Mr. DeLuce presented the report. He noted that the Park District continues to engage with the IDNR 
about the terms of a previous OSLAD grant award. The OSLAD grant applications has a September 1, 
2021 deadline. Staff is preparing an application. Mr. DeLuce presented the pickleball project for Board 
for consideration. He stated staff had selected a pickleball complex at the Seaman Field location of 
Centennial Park as the highest priority option for the $400,000 matching grant program. Discussion 
ensued. 
 
Commissioner Kuhl requested more information about the project’s cost estimates and budget. Mr. 
DeLuce responded that the estimates had been vetted by Architectural Expressions with several 
contractors. 
 
Mr. Gleason reported that staff had visited several pickleball complexes in central Illinois and their 
managers had recommended a minimum of twelve (12) courts. He also stated that staff visited a 280-
player pickleball tournament in Springfield. The tournament had received more interest, but it was 
determined that 280 players would be the maximum they could accommodate for an eight (8) court 
three-day weekend tournament.  
 
Discussion ensued about the terms of a grant award acceptance, obligations, compliance and timeline; 
the pickleball complex’s potential site location in relation to maintenance and operations buildings in 



  
Minutes of the August 25, 2021 Special Board Meeting | Page 3 

consideration of future expansion, off-street parking, site soil conditions, site drainage, and its location 
within Champaign. 
 
Commissioner Kuhl made a motion to approve proceeding with $400,000 OSLAD grant as shown in 
attachment 1, and authorization and signature of Grant Program Resolution of Authorization due to 
IDNR by September 1, 2021. The motion was seconded by President Miller. Upon roll call, the vote was 
as follows: Vice President Hays – no; Commissioner Solon – no; Commissioner Kuhl – yes; and 
President Miller – yes. The motion was defeated 2-2. 
 
Discussion 
 

1. Parker Glen Development 
Mr. Weiss presented the report. The developer is building multi-family units in the Parker Glen 
subdivision and per the 2011 Trail Plan jointly established by the City of Champaign and the 
Champaign Park District, the developer will be required to install a trail that connects with the North 
Champaign Trail. Mr. Weiss noted that the Board will be presented with a request from the City of 
Champaign at a future Board meeting for an easement in which the Park District would agree to 
maintain the new trail segment.  
 
Discussion and clarifications ensued about the type of development, the new trail’s location and 
specifications, the Park District’s trail maintenance requirements and expenses, development 
obligations, and the trail plan’s priorities.  
 
Commissioners Solon and Kuhl requested the review of the 2011 Trail Plan during a future study 
session. Mr. DeLuce noted that staff had reviewed the 2011 Trail Plan with City personnel and 
discussed updating the joint plan. President Miller requested that staff move forward with presenting 
this trail development for consideration at a future Board Meeting. 
 
Comments from Commissioners 
President Miller had received a letter from a citizen thanking the horticulture staff for addressing the 
flowers in a memorial garden at 4th and Washington St. He noted that the citizen was pleased with the 
work and is considering donating a memorial bench at the same location.  
 
Executive Session 
Commissioner Solon moved pursuant to the basis set forth below to convene into Executive Session. 
The motion was seconded by Vice President Hays. Upon roll call, the vote was as follows:  President 
Miller – yes; Commissioner Kuhl – yes; Vice President Hays – yes; and Commissioner Solon – yes. The 
motion passed 4-0. The Board convened into Executive Session under the Illinois Open Meetings Act, 
specifically 5 ILCS 120/2(c)(11) Litigation, when an action against, affecting or on behalf of the 
particular public body has been filed and is pending before a court or administrative tribunal, or when 
the public body finds that an action is probable or imminent, in which case the basis for the finding shall 
be recorded and entered into the minutes of the closed meeting. 
 
Return to Regular Meeting 
Following the adjournment of the Executive Session, the Board reconvened in open meeting. 
 
Adjourn 
There being no further business to come before the Board, Vice President Hays made a motion to 
adjourn the meeting. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Solon. Upon roll call, the vote was as 
follows: President Miller – yes; Commissioner Kuhl – yes; Vice President Hays – yes; and 
Commissioner Solon - yes. The motion passed 4-0 and the meeting was adjourned at 7:33 p.m.  
 
Approved 
 
 
_____________________________________ ___________________________________ 
Kevin J. Miller, President    Jarrod Scheunemann, Secretary 



The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community’s quality of life through 
positive experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts. 

 
 
 
REPORT TO PARK BOARD 
 
FROM: Joe DeLuce, Executive Director 
 
DATE: September 1, 2021 
 
SUBJECT: Approval of a Resolution Ratifying Change Orders 3, 5, and 7 through 11 for 
 Martens Center Construction 
 
Background 
Construction is underway at the Martens Center.  Park District Attorney recommends ratification 
(attachment 2) of attendant construction change orders when their cumulative value exceeds 
staff spending authority.  In the course of building and in the interest of construction schedule, 
the following change orders reviewed/authored by Ratio Architects have been executed: 
 

No. Amount ($) Description Remarks 

3 4,972.50 Suitable soil import Additional to CO 1 unit pricing 

5 2,675.14 Brush and encroachment clearing Along south property line 

7 2,198.71 Building permit revisions; plumbing Required by City 

8 1,445.20 Building permit revisions; exiting Required by City 

9 2,801.74 Building permit revisions; sprinkler Required by City 

10 2,049.04 Building permit revisions; HVAC Required by City 

11 8,268.74 Precast panel steel imbed fortification Per shop drawing review/coordination 
 
Prior Board Action 
January 13, 2021 Regular Meeting—Broeren Russo Builders awarded the Martens Center 
construction contract. 
April 14, 2021 Regular Meeting—Change Order 1 ratified. 
June 9, 2021 Regular Meeting—Change Order 2 ratified. 
August 11, 2021 Regular Meeting—Change Order 4 ratified; Change Order 6 authorized. 
 
Budget Impact 
The change orders added $24,411.07 in total to the Martens Center construction contract.  The 
contract sum to date is $9,652,867.96 as shown on (attachment 1) Change Order Log. 
 
Recommended Action 
Staff recommends approval of a resolution ratifying Change Orders 3, 5 and 7 through 11 to the 
Broeren Russo construction contract for the Martens Center. 
 
Prepared by:       Reviewed by: 
 
 
 
Andrew Weiss       Joe DeLuce 
Director of Planning      Executive Director 



RESOLUTION 
 

CHAMPAIGN PARK DISTRICT BOARD OFCOMMISSIONERS 
 

Ratification of Martens Center Construction Contract 
Change Orders 3, 5 and 7 through 11 

 
WHEREAS, the Champaign Park District is a municipal corporation located in 

Champaign County, Illinois, and is a park district organized and operating pursuant to the 
provisions of the Park District Code (70 ILCS 1205/1-1 et seq.); and 
 

WHEREAS, the Champaign Park District annually considers and approves a capital 
budget for each fiscal year commencing May 1 and ending April 30 for various projects; and 
 

WHEREAS, Champaign Park District did enter into a construction contract with Broeren 
Russo Builders for construction of the Martens Center, effective January 27, 2021; and 
 

WHEREAS, Broeren Russo Builders presented estimate pricing for Change Orders 3, 5, 
and 7 through 11, whereupon Ratio Architects authored such Change Orders; and 
 

WHEREAS, Champaign Park District representatives, Ratio Architects, and Broeren 
Russo Builders determined that the costs associated with Change Orders 3, 5, and 7 through 11 
total $24,411.07; and 
 

WHEREAS, as to Change Orders 3, 5, and 7 through 11 to the construction contract, 
circumstances necessitating the change in performance were not reasonably foreseeable at the 
time the contract was signed; the changes are germane to the original contract as signed; and 
such changes are in the best interest of the Champaign Park District and authorized by law; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of the 
Champaign Park District as follows: 
 
 That Change Orders 3, 5, and 7 through 11 to the Martens Center construction contract 
with Broeren Russo Builders are hereby passed, approved, confirmed, and ratified for the 
cumulative amount of $24,411.07 as reflected in Change Orders 3, 5, and 7 through 11, which 
are attached hereto as Exhibit "A". 
 

APPROVED by the President and Board of Commissioners of the Champaign Park 
District this 8th day of September, 2021. 
 

(SEAL) APPROVED 
  
  
  

__________________________________ __________________________________ 
Jarrod Scheunemann, Secretary Kevin J. Miller, President 

 



Current: 1 Sep 2021

Number Date Brief Description Add Deduct Contract Sum

2/27/2021 9,463,400.00 Original Contract

1 4/6/2021 Building Slab Unsuitable Soils Replacement 55,867.50 9,519,267.50 Ratified at 4/14/2021 Regular Board Meeting

2 7/13/2021 Building Foundation Unsuitable Soils Replacement 58,411.29 9,577,678.79 Ratified at 6/9/2021 Regular Board Meeting

3 7/13/2021 Building Slab Unsuitable Soils Replacement (additional) 4,972.50 9,582,651.29 Executed 7/16/2021; pending ratification

4 7/27/2021 Athletic Equipment Certified Installers 16,000.00 9,598,651.29 Ratified at 8/11/2021 Regular Board Meeting

5 8/2/2021 Additional Brush and Fence Encroachment Clearing 2,675.14 9,601,326.43 Executed 8/3/2021; pending ratification

6 8/4/2021 Five Foot Wide City Sidewalk 34,778.10 9,636,104.53 Authorized at 8/11/2021 Regular Board Meeting

7 8/17/2021 Plumbing Permit Changes 2,198.71 9,638,303.24 Executed 8/25/2021; pending ratification

8 8/17/2021 Illuminated Exit Sign Permit Change 1,445.20 9,639,748.44 Executed 8/25/2021; pending ratification

9 8/17/2021 Fire Department Connection Permit Change 2,801.74 9,642,550.18 Executed 8/25/2021; pending ratification

10 8/17/2021 Ductwork Metal Plate Escutcheon Requirement 2,049.04 9,644,599.22 Executed 8/25/2021; pending ratification

11 8/17/2021 Steel Tube Headers at West Windows Structural 8,268.74 9,652,867.96 Executed 8/25/2021; pending ratification

Remarks
Change Order

Martens Center Construction Change Order Log

Amount ($)











































































































































































The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community’s quality of life through positive 
experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts. 

 
 

 
 

 
REPORT TO PARK BOARD 
 
FROM:         Joe DeLuce, Executive Director 
 
DATE: September 1, 2021 
 
SUBJECT: Approval of a Resolution Initiating the 2021 General Obligation Bond Issue 
        
Background 
Each year the Champaign Park District issues General Obligation (GO) Bonds in order to fund 
necessary improvements and repairs to Park District property and has been pledged towards the 
future debt service payments outstanding on the alternate revenue bonds (ARB) issued to build 
Sholem Aquatic Center. For fiscal year ended (FYE) 2022, this translates to approximately 
$533,250 of the bond issue applied to the ARB debt service payment, and the remaining $679,250 
to capital improvements. Last year the Board authorized the issuance of $1,195,800 of non-
referendum General Obligation Bonds. The consumer price index (CPI) increased 1.4% during this 
past year, therefore the District has the authority to add that percent to the prior year issuance 
which increases the new bond issue to $1,212,500. The current debt service extension base of the 
District for calendar year 2021 is $1,239,107.77, the maximum amount including interest that the 
District may levy. The interest rate for the current bond issue that matures November 30, 2021 is 
0.30%, or $3,590 estimated total expense. 
 
Timeline for bond issuance 
 September – resolution of intent to issue the annual GO bond is presented for approval and 

the date for the public hearing is set 
 October – request approval to solicit bids for the bond issue 
 November – request approval to accept bid for bond issue, approve bond ordinance, and 

approve payoff amount for the prior year bond issue due November 30 
 
Prior Board Action 
None 
 
Budget Impact 
The FYE2022 budget includes the GO Bond issue at the full value mentioned above, as well as all 
applicable attorney and filing fees.  
 
Recommended Action 
Staff recommends that the Champaign Park District Board of Commissioners approve a resolution 
stating the Park District’s need and intent to issue $1,212,500 of General Obligation Bonds for 
FYE2022. 
 
Prepared by: Reviewed by:  
 
 
Andrea N. Wallace, CPA Joe DeLuce, CPRP 
Director of Finance Executive Director  



RESOLUTION 
 
 
 WHEREAS, the Champaign Park District is a duly authorized General Park District 
organized under the provisions of the Park District Code of the State of Illinois as amended; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, for the payment of land purchased for parks and boulevards, for the 
building, maintaining, improving and protecting of the same, and for certain debt service on 
alternate bonds issued for such purposes, and for the payment of expenses incident 
thereto, the Champaign Park District is authorized and empowered to issue general 
obligation limited bonds of said Park District in an amount not to exceed .575% of the total 
assessed valuation of all property in said Park District by Ordinance, and within the Park 
District’s applicable debt service extension base, without an election on such proposition; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, it now reasonably expected that the aggregate outstanding unpaid 
balance of bonds and notes of the Park District, including the bond issue which the Park 
District proposes to issue and sell on or about December 1, 2021, will not, on that date, 
exceed .575% of the total assessed valuation of all taxable property in the Park District, and 
in any event such amount will not be exceeded; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Commissioners of the Champaign Park District have made a 
thorough investigation and given careful consideration of the needs for maintaining, 
improving and protecting of the lands and buildings and the parks of said Park District, and 
for land acquisition and the payment of debt service on outstanding alternate bonds; and 
 
 WHEREAS, said Commissioners have determined it is necessary to raise additional 
funds for maintaining, improving and protecting the lands, buildings and parks of said Park 
District, including the payment of expenses incident thereto and the payment of debt service 
on outstanding alternate bonds; and 
 

WHEREAS, Champaign Park District does not have sufficient funds available for 
such purposes and, therefore, it will be necessary to borrow and to issue and sell general 
obligation limited bonds of said Park District as evidence of such indebtedness in the sum of 
up to $1,212,500.00, all as provided for by The Park District Code and the statutes of the 
State of Illinois thereunto enabling; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Park Commissioners of 

Champaign Park District, as follows: 
 
Section 1. It is desirable and necessary for the best interests of the Champaign Park 

District and for the residents thereof that the Park District raise additional funds for the 

maintaining, improving and protecting of the lands and buildings and the parks of said Park 

District, and the payment of debt service on outstanding alternate bonds, and for land 

acquisition, including the payment of expenses incident thereto. 



Section 2. The Park District has obligated itself to pay the costs of such 

improvements and repairs and the payment of debt service on outstanding alternate bonds 

in excess of $1,212,500.00 and that, in order to be able to pay those costs, it is necessary, 

and for the best interests of Champaign Park District, that the Park District borrow the sum 

of $1,212,500.00 and that general obligation bonds of the Park District in the aggregate 

amount of $1,212,500.00 be issued in evidence thereof, and sold. 

Section 3. The ordinance selling such general obligation bonds shall not be enacted 

for a period of seven days after the adjournment of the public hearing to receive public 

comments on the proposal to sell such bonds. After expiration of said seven day period, the 

Park District may act on the ordinance selling such bonds for sale on terms to be hereafter 

approved by this Board general obligation limited bonds of Champaign Park District in the 

aggregate amount of up to $1,212,500.00, said bonds to be dated as provided in such 

ordinance, maturing on or about November 30, 2022 and the Treasurer of the Park District 

is hereby authorized and directed to seek out and negotiate with prospective purchasers of 

said bonds and to report to this Board for its consideration and approval or disapproval the 

interest rates and other terms bid by said prospective purchasers. 

Adopted this 8th day of September, 2021. 

 
 
      Approved: 
 
 
      ___________________________________ 
      Kevin J. Miller, President 
 
 
      Attest: 
 
 
      ___________________________________ 
      Jarrod Scheunemann, Secretary  



The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community’s quality of life through positive 
experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts. 

 
 

 
 

 
REPORT TO PARK BOARD 
 
FROM:         Joe DeLuce, Executive Director 
 
DATE: September 1, 2021 
 
SUBJECT: Approval of a Resolution Setting a Public Hearing on Proposed 2021 General 

Obligation Bond Issue 
        
Background 
According to State Statute, if the Champaign Park District is to sell General Obligation Bonds, a 
Public Hearing must occur for the purpose of receiving public comments on the Board proposal to 
sell bonds. Staff is requesting Board approval of a Resolution to set the public hearing date for 
Wednesday, October 13, 2021 at 7:00 p.m. at the Bresnan Meeting Center (The said public hearing 
can be heard and participated in live by the public utilizing Zoom call in information that will be 
posted on the Champaign Park District's website: http://www.champaignparks.com before the 
hearing on the General Obligation Bonds) to discuss the issuance of $1,212,500 of bonds for the 
purpose of providing funds for capital improvements and to pay debt service on alternate bonds. 
 
Prior Board Action 
None 
 
Budget Impact 
The FYE2022 budget includes the GO Bond issue at the full value mentioned above, as well as all 
applicable attorney and filing fees.  
 
Recommended Action 
Staff recommends that the Champaign Park District Board of Commissioners approve a resolution 
to set a Public Hearing for Wednesday, October 13, 2021 at 7:00 p.m. at the Bresnan Meeting 
Center, which can be can be heard and participated in live by the public utilizing Zoom call in 
information that will be posted on the Champaign Park District's website, to discuss the issuance of 
$1,212,500 of General Obligation Bonds. 
 
Prepared by: Reviewed by:  
 
 
 
Andrea N. Wallace, CPA Joe DeLuce, CPRP 
Director of Finance Executive Director  



RESOLUTION 
 
 WHEREAS, it is the intention of Champaign Park District to sell bonds in the total amount 

of $1,212,500.00 for the purpose of providing funds to pay for the building, maintaining, 

improving and protecting the parks and boulevards of the Park District, and for certain debt 

service on alternate bonds issued for such purpose, and for the payment of expenses incident 

thereto. 

 WHEREAS, it is required by statute that a governmental unit proposing to sell non-

referendum general obligation bonds hold a public hearing concerning its intent to do so prior to 

the sale of such bonds, and that it give notice of such hearing as required by said statute. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Park Commissioners of 

Champaign Park District that said Park District shall hold a public hearing concerning its intent 

to issue and sell general obligations bonds of said Park District in the amount of $1,212,500.00 

for said purpose, said public hearing to be held Wednesday, October 13, 2021 at 7:00 P.M. 

Central Daylight time at Bresnan Meeting Center, 706 Kenwood Road, Champaign, Illinois, 

which can be heard and participated in live by the public utilizing zoom call in information that 

will be posted on the Champaign Park District’s website as part of the regularly scheduled 

meeting of said Board to be held that date. 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Secretary of this Board shall give due public notice 

of said hearing in the time and manner prescribed by law. 

 Adopted this 8th day of September, 2021. 

       Approved: 

       ________________________________ 
       Kevin J. Miller, President 
 
 
       Attest: 
 
       ________________________________ 

Jarrod Scheunemann, Secretary 



The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community’s quality of life through positive 
experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts. 

 
 
 
REPORT TO PARK BOARD 
 
FROM: Joe DeLuce, Executive Director 
 
DATE: September 8, 2021 
 
SUBJECT: North Champaign Trail Easement 
 
Background 
The Champaign Trail Plan adopted by the Park District in 2011 indicates a planned spur of the North 
Champaign Trail to be constructed once platting and development of the parcel takes place.   
 
The purpose of the Trails Plan is to provide a vision for a connected system throughout the community.  
The plan also sets clear expectations for where trails should be built and to what standard. The plan will 
influence the site design of development, provide direction for public works projects, and be a resource 
in applying for grant funding for new trail segments.  Most importantly, the plan provides a common 
vision that can be supported and promoted by the broader community. 
 
The Trails Plan is a joint effort between the City of Champaign and the Champaign Park District. Both 
the City and Park District understand the quality-of-life benefits that can result from a well-connected 
trail system in the community.  During the creation of this plan these two units of government 
coordinated to better understand how the vision of this plan can be realized. The implementation of this 
plan outlines how the City and District will work together to achieve the vision of the plan with the 
construction and maintenance of new trails. 
 
The North Champaign Multi-Use Trail is a 1.6-mile trail that runs through the north Neil Street and 
Prospect Avenue shopping district and connects several residential neighborhoods. To connect to the 
Boneyard Greenway, a pedestrian/bicycle overpass will be necessary over interstate 74. Much of this 
trail is already built and travels through Ashland Park, 88 West Apartments, and along Moreland 
Boulevard. 
 
The City is currently in the platting phase of a multi-family development to occur within the property 
(attached).  Part of the plat conditions are for the developer to construct the North Champaign Trail spur 
along the southern property line.  The drawings indicate a recreational easement to be granted to the 
Champaign Park District for this segment contiguous with the North Champaign Trail (last four pages of 
attachment).  Before the City finalizes the plat with developers they are requesting acceptance of the 
easement in order to move forward with the development. 
 
Prior Board Action 
2011 the Park Board accepted the Champaign Trails Plan between the Park District and the City of 
Champaign in order to help plan for the future development and maintenance of trails in the overall 
community. 



The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community’s quality of life through positive 
experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts. 

Budget Impact 
The trail construction would be undertaken by the developer.  Maintenance of the trail would be in 
accordance with the easement. The District operations staff estimates the annual cost to maintain this 
portion of the North Champaign Trail would be $345 per year. 
 
Recommendation 
The District staff recommends the Park Board vote to approve the recreational trail easement for the 
800-foot Parker Glen Trail that connects to the North Champaign Trail. 
 
Prepared by:      Reviewed by: 
 
 
Andrew Weiss      Joe DeLuce 
Director of Planning     Executive Director 









 

 

 

PERMANENT EASEMENT 

(2605 JT Coffman Dr., Champaign) 

THE GRANTOR, the CITY OF CHAMPAIGN, in the County of Champaign and State of 
Illinois, for and in consideration of One Dollar ($1.00) in hand paid and other good and valuable 
consideration, and the conditions and agreements hereinafter contained, hereby give, grant, and 
convey to the GRANTEE, THE CHAMPAIGN PARK DISTRICT, an Illinois Municipal 
Corporation, of the City of Champaign, a permanent, perpetual and non-exclusive easement for 
ingress and egress only together with the privilege, right and authority to work, erect, construct, 
install and/or lay, and thereafter use, operate, inspect, repair, maintain, replace, and conduct all 
activities necessary for the construction of trail improvements (hereinafter “Improvements”), and 
appurtenances to any of the same, located upon or adjacent to, over, under, across and through 
the land of the GRANTOR(S), which part shall hereinafter be referred to as the “Easement Area” 
described as follows: 
 
COMMON ADDRESS: 2605 JT Coffman Dr., Champaign, Illinois, 61822 
 
PERMANENT PARCEL NO: 41-14-36-326-035 
 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: 
 
The part of the tract being granted for a permanent easement is depicted on the attached plat and 
is more particularly described as follows: 
 
Lot 101 of the Villas at Ashland Farms Replat, recorded as Document Number 2008R27768 on 
November 3, 2008 at the Champaign County Recorder’s Office, encompassing 12.85 acres, more 
or less, situated in Champaign County, Illinois. all situated in the City of Champaign, County of 
Champaign, and State of Illinois. 
 
 
Together with the right of ingress and egress over adjacent land of the GRANTOR for purposes 
of the easement. 
 
In consideration of the grant of easement herein contained, the parties hereby agree to the 
following terms and conditions: 
 
1. That the GRANTOR shall retain all rights not herein granted, to the ownership, use and 
occupation of the above described Easement Area. The GRANTOR shall not place anything or 
allow anything to be placed or parked with their permission, within the easement area without 
prior authorization by the GRANTEE, including structures, obstacles, obstructions, furniture, 
vehicles, fences, trees, bushes, shrubs, plants, gardens, machinery, supplies, etc. The GRANTOR 
shall not deny or impair the GRANTEE or its contractors access thereto for purposes of 
construction, maintenance, repair or replacement of the Improvements. During the period of 



construction or maintenance of the Improvements, the GRANTEE shall have the exclusive use of 
the easement area for any and all construction and maintenance work. 
 
2. That all materials, equipment, tools, supplies and apparatus used in the construction and/or 
maintenance of the Improvements and all surplus soil and debris excavated in the course of the 
maintenance or construction of the Improvement, may be transported to or from and be used 
upon the site of said construction work, on and across the Easement Area, and over the 
remainder of the GRANTOR's property in a reasonable working space adjacent to the work 
being performed. GRANTOR shall not restrict or impede GRANTEE or its contractor access to, 
ingress to or egress from the Improvements. 
 
3. That the GRANTEE, or its contractor, if reasonable, shall refill the excavations so that the 
surface of the Easement Area adjacent to the Improvements shall be restored to the approximate 
level and condition existing at the place of the construction before the easement thereof and shall 
remove from the above-described real estate all surplus soil and debris resulting from said 
construction work. The "approximate elevation" shall be interpreted to mean such elevations as 
will provide drainage and usefulness comparable to or better than that now existing. 
 
4. The GRANTEE, or its contractor, in consideration of the granting of this easement and as a 
condition of such grant, will repair or replace to conform as nearly to the original condition as is 
reasonable, at no cost to the GRANTOR, any fence, driveway or sidewalk that is damaged, 
destroyed or disturbed during the construction of said Improvements. If the original surface 
condition was that of a grassy area, then the GRANTEE, or its contractor, shall prepare such 
surface area for reseeding with grass, and shall reseed the area disturbed by the construction. The 
GRANTOR shall be responsible for any watering of the reseeded area. 
 
5. That the GRANTOR shall be privileged to remove any structures, sod, trees, bushes, shrubs 
and plants of any kind which are on any part of the Easement Area, prior to the construction of 
the said Improvements. The GRANTEE may remove small portable structures, sod, rock, gravel, 
trees, signs, parking directional equipment or signage, bushes, shrubs and plants of any kind 
which are on any part of the easement area during the construction, replacement or maintenance 
of the Improvements and GRANTEE shall not be obligated to replace small portable structures, 
trees, bushes, shrubs and plants of any kind, or any portion of the Easement Area which may be 
removed or damaged. 
 
6. Consideration herein shall be full payment for any damages to the GRANTOR's land, or 
successors and assigns, by reason of the construction, improvement or repairs of the 
Improvements. 
 
7. In the event that the GRANTEE shall ever abandon or stop using the easement, then in such 
event GRANTEE shall, unless directed otherwise by GRANTOR, at its sole cost and expense, 
remove the Improvements it made to the Easement Area and return the area said easement was 
onto substantially the same condition it was in prior to the granting of the easement. 
 
8. That as long as this easement shall remain in full force and effect GRANTEE shall provide 
and make all maintenance and repairs which are necessary for the upkeep of the paved portion of 
the easement. 
 



9. That time shall be of the essence of this easement and that the terms and conditions hereof 
shall extend to and be obligatory upon the GRANTOR, its successors and assigns and upon the 
GRANTEE and its successor, assigns and contractors until the construction of the Improvement 
has been completed. 
 
 
WITNESS our hands and seals as set forth below. 
 
 
 
      GRANTOR 
 
Approved as to form: City of Champaign, Illinois, a Municipal 

Corporation 

By: _________________________   

 Assistant City Attorney  Date:________________________________ 

      By:__________________________________ 

                          City Manager 

 
       
 
STATE OF ILLINOIS  ) 
                       ) ss. 
COUNTY OF CHAMPAIGN ) 
 

 I, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for said County and State aforesaid, DO 
HEREBY CERTIFY, that __________________________________________, personally 
known to me to be the same person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument, 
appeared before me this day in person and acknowledged that he/she signed, sealed and 
delivered the said instrument as his/her free and voluntary act, for the uses and purposes therein 
set forth, including the waiver of the right of homestead. 

 Given under my hand and Notarial Seal this ____ day of ______________, 2021. 

 

      ______________________________________ 
                            Notary Public 

 

 
  



GRANTEE 
 
Champaign Park District, an Illinois Municipal 
Corporation 
 
Date:________________________________ 
 
By:_________________________________  
                     Signature 
 
____________________________________   
                      Print Name 
 
      
STATE OF ILLINOIS  ) 
                       ) ss. 
COUNTY OF CHAMPAIGN ) 
 

 I, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for said County and State aforesaid, DO 
HEREBY CERTIFY, that __________________________________________, personally 
known to me to be the same person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument, 
appeared before me this day in person and acknowledged that he/she signed, sealed and 
delivered the said instrument as his/her free and voluntary act, for the uses and purposes therein 
set forth, including the waiver of the right of homestead. 

 Given under my hand and Notarial Seal this ____ day of ______________, 2021. 

 

      ______________________________________ 
                            Notary Public 

 
 



The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community’s quality of life through positive 
experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts. 

 
 

 
 

 
 
REPORT TO PARK BOARD 
 
FROM:  Joe DeLuce, Executive Director 
 
DATE:    September 8, 2021  
 
SUBJECT:   Olympic and Paralympic Tribute Inductees 
 
Background 
The Tribute to Olympic and Paralympic Athletes at Dodds Park honors the extraordinary achievements of 
Champaign County residents who have participated in the Olympic or Paralympic Games, as its granite 
platform is inscribed with their names and the Olympic symbol of linked rings. 

Policy for Inclusion of Area Athletes 

Automatic Inclusion: 
1. Any athlete listed on the Olympic or Paralympics team roster, for any Olympiad, who designated a 

community in Champaign County as their home town on the roster. 
2. Any athlete who participated in an Olympic or Paralympics demonstration or exhibition sport that 

designated a community in Champaign County as their hometown. 

Other inclusion possibilities (Material to validate must be provided by the applying athlete or representative of 
the athlete): 

1. A candidate who attended elementary or high school in Champaign County for five (5) years or more. 
2. A candidate who moved to Champaign County within five (5) years from the time they participated as 

an Olympic athlete and remained in residence for a period of fifteen (15) years or more. 
3. Any unusual situations or circumstances will be considered.  

 
 
2021 Proposed Inductees 
 
Justin Spring, USA Gymnastic participated in the 2008 Olympic Games in Beijing, China, Justin has lived in 
Champaign, Illinois from 2002 to the present and is currently the Men’s Gymnastics Coach at the University of 
Illinois. 
 
Melissa Bartch- Hackly, USA Women’s Volleyball participated in the Tokyo Games 2020 and recorded 
Champaign, Illinois as her hometown. 
 
Adam Bleakney - wheelchair track (plus he has been the US track coach for 2012, 2016, and 2020) 
2000 Sydney, Australia 
2004 Athens, Greece 
2008 Beijing, China  
 
Aaron Pike – Wheelchair track and Nordic skiing 
2012 London, England 
2014 Sochi, Russia 
2016 Rio De Janeiro, Brazil 
2018 PyeongChang, South Korea 



The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community’s quality of life through positive 
experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts. 

 
 

 
Stephanie Wheeler – Wheelchair Basketball 
2004 Athens, Greece 
2008 Beijing, China 
2016 Rio De Janeiro, Brazil (Coach) 
 
Returning Athletes inducted in 2016, now competing in Tokyo 2020 
 

• Tatyana McFadden, Paralympic Athlete competing in Track and Field in Tokyo 2020.  Inducted into the 
Olympic Paralympic Tribute in 2016. 

 
• Amanda McGrory, Paralympic Athlete competing in Track and Field in Tokyo 2020.  Inducted into the 

Olympic Paralympic Tribute in 2016. 
 

• Brian Siemann, Paralympic Athlete competing in Track and Field in Tokyo 2020.  Inducted into the 
Olympic Paralympic Tribute in 2016. 

 
• Joshua George, Paralympic Athlete competing in Track and Field in Tokyo 2020.  Inducted into the 

Olympic Paralympic Tribute in 2016. 
 

• Nichole Millage, Paralympic Athlete competing in Sitting Volleyball in Tokyo 2020. Inducted in to the 
Olympic Paralympic Tribute in 2016. 

 
Recommended Action 
The Tribute to Olympic and Paralympic Committee made up of Maureen Gilbert, Jean Driscoll, and Joe 
DeLuce reviewed the information on the above athletes and unanimously agreed that since the new inductees 
are no longer students at the U of I and are now considered permanent residents of Champaign County and 
they are competing in Tokyo in this month, they qualify to be inducted into the Tribute for Olympic and 
Paralympic Athletes. 
 
Five (5) Paralympics Athletes, Tatyana Mc Fadden, Amanda McGrory, Brian Siemann, Nichole Millage, and 
Joshua George, who are already inducted into the Olympic Tribute are competing in the Tokyo Games so we 
will add the 2020 to their squares within the Paralympic Tribute.  
 
Due to the increase in COVID 19 cases in the county we are planning to hold the induction ceremony in May of 
2022. 
 
 
 
Prepared by:      Reviewed by: 
 
Joe DeLuce      Jarrod Scheunemann 
Executive Director     Asst. to the Executive Director 
 
   



The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community’s quality of life through positive 
experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts. 

 
 

 
 
REPORT TO PARK BOARD 
 
FROM:         Joe DeLuce, Executive Director 
 
DATE: September 1, 2021 
 
SUBJECT: Acceptance of GASB 75 Actuarial Valuation Report for Fiscal Year Ending April 

30, 2021 
           
Background 
The Park District engaged Nyhart to conduct the actuarial valuation for the Park District in relation 
to health insurance offered to retirees and spouses upon retirement from the Park District. The 
results of the report are required under governmental accounting standard (GASB) No. 75 
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions, commonly 
referred to as OPEB.  
 
To review the report, begin on page 15-21 which summarizes the details of the current plan 
provisions, actuarial assumptions and methods beginning on page 16. Of items to note, the 
discount rate provided is based on the GASB 75 standard and reflects the 20-year general 
obligation bond indices. Page 20 per capita costs are what determine the OPEB liability broken out 
between explicit and implicit as noted on page 21. These pages represent the details behind the 
report used to calculate the liability which is noted in the Executive Summary on page 3 of the 
report. A detailed breakdown of the liability is represented on page 4; make note that no liability is 
recognized for Medicare eligible retirees. There are further detailed actuary notes on page 24 that 
provide a little more detail on the assumption changes and the impact on the OPEB liability.  The 
footnote disclosure to be included in the financial audit report, along with the liability to be 
recognized in the government-wide financials are presented on pages 5-10.  
 
Prior Board Action 
May 26, 2021– Board authorized the Executive Director to execute the Service Agreement with The 
Howard E Nyhart Company for the two fiscal years ended April 30, 2021 and 2022. 
 
Budget Impact 
The FYE2022 budget includes $4,120 funds to cover this expenditure, and $2,100 will be included 
in the FYE2023 budget.  
 
Recommended Action 
Staff recommends the Board accept the FYE2021 GASB 75 Actuarial Valuation report as 
presented. 
 
Prepared by: Reviewed by:  
 
 
 
Andrea N. Wallace Joe DeLuce, CPRP 
Director of Finance Executive Director  



CONTACT
Rosemary Howell, FSA, EA, MAAA

rosemary.howell@nyhart.com

ADDRESS
Nyhart

8415 Allison Pointe Blvd. Suite 300

Indianapolis, IN 46250

PHONE
General (317) 845-3500

Toll-Free (800) 428-7106

Fax (317) 845-3654

GASB 75 ACTUARIAL VALUATION
Fiscal Year Ending April 30, 2021

CHAMPAIGN PARK DISTRICT



Table of Contents

Page

Certification  1

Executive Summary  3

GASB Disclosures

Schedule of Changes in Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios  5

OPEB Expense  6

Deferred Outflows / (Inflows) of Resources  7

Sensitivity Results  9

Projection of GASB Disclosures  10

Cash Flow Projections  11

Discussion of Discount Rates  12

Summary of Plan Participants  13

Substantive Plan Provisions  15

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions  16

Appendix  22

Comparison of Participant Demographic Information  23

Detailed Actuary's Notes  24

Glossary  25

Decrements Exhibit  26

Retirement Rates Exhibit  27

Definitions  28



September 1, 2021

Andrea N. Wallace

Champaign Park District

Bresnan Meeting Center

706 Kenwood Road

Champaign, IL 61821

This report summarizes the GASB actuarial valuation for the Champaign Park District 2020/21 fiscal year. To the best of our knowledge, the report presents 

a fair position of the funded status of the plan in accordance with GASB Statement No. 75 (Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for 

Post-Employment Benefits Other Than Pensions). This report may not be appropriate for other purposes. Please contact Nyhart prior to disclosing this 

report to any other party or relying on its content for any purpose other than that explained above. Failure to do so may result in misrepsentaion or 

misinterpretation of this report. 

The information presented herein is based on the actuarial assumptions and substantive plan provisions summarized in this report and participant 

information furnished to us by the Plan Sponsor. We have reviewed the employee census provided by the Plan Sponsor for reasonableness when 

compared to the prior information provided but have not audited the information at the source, and therefore do not accept responsibility for the 

accuracy or the completeness of the data on which the information is based. When relevant data may be missing, we may have made assumptions we feel 

are neutral or conservative to the purpose of the measurement. We are not aware of any significant issues with and have relied on the data provided.

The discount rate, other economic assumptions, and demographic assumptions have been selected by the Plan Sponsor with the concurrence of Nyhart. 

In our opinion, the actuarial assumptions are individually reasonable and in combination represent our estimate of anticipated experience of the Plan. All 

calculations have been made in accordance with generally accepted actuarial principles and practice.

Future actuarial measurements may differ significantly from the current measurements presented in this report due to such factors as the following:

· plan experience differing from that anticipated by the economic or demographic assumptions;

· changes in economic or demographic assumptions;

· increases or decreases expected as part of the natural operation of the methodology used for these measurements (such as the end of an 

amortization period); and

· changes in plan provisions or applicable law.

We did not perform an analysis of the potential range of future measurements due to the limited scope of our engagement.

To our knowledge, there have been no significant events prior to the current year's measurement date or as of the date of this report that could materially 

affect the results contained herein.

Page 1



Neither Nyhart nor any of its employees has any relationship with the plan or its sponsor that could impair or appear to impair the objectivity of this 

report. Our professional work is in full compliance with the American Academy of Actuaries “Code of Professional Conduct” Precept 7 regarding conflict of 

interest. The undersigned meet the Qualification Standards of the American Academy of Actuaries to render the actuarial opinion contained herein.

Should you have any questions please do not hesitate to contact us.

Rosemary Howell, FSA, EA, MAAA

Valuation Actuary

Suraj M. Datta, FSA, MAAA

Consulting Actuary

Page 2



Executive Summary
Champaign Park District GASB 75 Valuation for Fiscal Year Ending April 30, 2021    

Summary of Results

Presented below is the summary of GASB 75 results for the fiscal year ending April 30, 2021 compared to the prior fiscal year as shown in the District's 

Notes to Financial Statement.

As of April 30, 2021  As of April 30, 2020

Total OPEB Liability  421,490  320,633 $$

Actuarial Value of Assets  0  0 $$

Net OPEB Liability  421,490  320,633 $$

Funded Ratio  0.0%  0.0%

FY 2020/21 FY 2019/20 

OPEB Expense  39,923  27,931 $$

Annual Employer Contributions  19,217  16,744 $$

As of April 30, 2021   As of April 30, 2020

 2.27%Discount Rate  2.92%

Expected Return on Assets N/AN/A

As of April 30, 2021

 66 Total Active Participants

Total Retiree Participants  6 

The active participants’ number above may include active employees who currently have no health care coverage. Refer to Summary of Participants 

section for an accurate breakdown of active employees with and without coverage.

Page 3



Executive Summary
Champaign Park District GASB 75 Valuation for Fiscal Year Ending April 30, 2021    

Summary of Results

Below is a breakdown of total GASB 75 liabilities allocated to past and current service compared to 

the prior year. The table below also provides a breakdown of the Total OPEB Liability allocated to 

pre- and post- Medicare eligibility. The liability shown below includes explicit (if any) and implicit 

subsidies. Refer to the Substantive Plan Provisions section for complete information on the Plan 

Sponsor’s GASB subsidies.

0K

50K

100K

150K

200K

250K

300K

350K

400K

450K

4/30/2020 4/30/2021

219.4K
252.8K

101.2K

168.7K

Retirees Active

Changes In Total OPEB Liability

T
h

o
u

sa
n

d
s

As of April 30, 2021Present Value of Future Benefits As of April 30, 2020

Active Employees  465,896  483,117 $$

Retired Employees  101,224  168,697 

Total Present Value of Future Benefits  651,814  567,120 $$

As of April 30, 2021Total OPEB Liability As of April 30, 2020

Active Pre-Medicare  252,793  219,409 $ $

Active Post-Medicare  0  0 

Active Liability  252,793  219,409 $ $

  

Retiree Pre-Medicare  168,697  101,224 Present Value of Future Benefits (PVFB) is the 

amount needed as of April 30, 2021 and April 30, 2020, 

to fully fund the District’s retiree health care subsidies 

for existing and future retirees and their dependents 

assuming all actuarial assumptions are met.

Total OPEB Liability is the portion of PVFB considered 

to be accrued or earned as of April 30, 2021 and April 

30, 2020. This amount is a required disclosure in the 

Required Supplementary Information section.

$ $

Retiree Post-Medicare  0  0 

Retiree Liability  168,697  101,224 $$

Total OPEB Liability  421,490  320,633 $$

  

As of April 30, 2021As of April 30, 2020

Discount Rate  2.27% 2.92%

Page 4



GASB Disclosures
Champaign Park District GASB 75 Valuation for Fiscal Year Ending April 30, 2021

Schedule of Changes in Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios

 OPEB Liability FY 2020/21 FY 2019/20 FY 2018/19

Total OPEB Liability

Total OPEB Liability - beginning of year  320,633  304,966  291,538 $ $ $

Service cost  17,628  15,028  13,956 

Interest  9,599  11,813  11,823 

Change of benefit terms  0  0  0 

Changes in assumptions  41,908  15,201  3,153 

Differences between expected and actual experience  50,939 (9,631)  0 

(19,217)Benefit payments (16,744) (15,504)

Net change in total OPEB liability  100,857  15,667  13,428 $ $ $

Total OPEB Liability - end of year  421,490  320,633  304,966 $ $ $

Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Plan fiduciary net position - beginning of year  0  0  0 $ $ $

Contributions - employer  19,217  16,744  15,504 

Contributions - active employees  0  0  0 

Net investment income  0  0  0 

Benefit payments (19,217) (16,744) (15,504)

Trust administrative expenses  0  0  0 

Net change in plan fiduciary net position  0  0  0 $ $ $

Plan fiduciary net position - end of year  0  0  0 $ $ $

Net OPEB Liability - end of year  421,490  320,633  304,966 $ $ $

Plan fiduciary net position as % of total OPEB liability  0.0%  0.0%  0.0%

Covered employee payroll  3,367,228  3,641,572  3,571,632 $ $ $

Net OPEB liability as % of covered payroll  12.5%  8.8%  8.5%

Page 5



GASB Disclosures
Champaign Park District GASB 75 Valuation for Fiscal Year Ending April 30, 2021

OPEB Expense

OPEB Expense FY 2020/21 FY 2019/20

Discount Rate

Beginning of year  2.92%  3.79%

End of year  2.27%  2.92%

Service cost  17,628  15,028 $ $

Interest  9,599  11,813 

Change of benefit terms  0  0 

Projected earnings on OPEB plan investments  0  0 

Reduction for contributions from active employees  0  0 

OPEB plan administrative expenses  0  0 

Current period recognition of deferred outflows / (inflows) of resources

Differences between expected and actual experience  5,163 (1,204)$ $

Changes in assumptions  7,533  2,294 

Net difference between projected and actual earnings on OPEB plan investments  0  0 

Total current period recognition  1,090  12,696 $ $

Total OPEB expense  27,931  39,923 $ $

Page 6



Champaign Park District GASB 75 Valuation for Fiscal Year Ending April 30, 2021 

GASB Disclosures

Deferred Outflows / (Inflows) of Resources

Deferred Outflows / (Inflows) of Resources represents the following items that have not been recognized in the OPEB Expense:

1. Differences between expected and actual experience of the OPEB plan

2. Changes of assumptions

3. Differences between projected and actual earnings in OPEB plan investments (for funded plans only)

The initial amortization period for the first two items noted above is based on expected future service lives while the difference between the projected and 

actual earnings in OPEB plan investment is amortized over five years. All balances are amortized linearly on a principal only basis and new bases will be 

created annually for each of the items above.

Differences between expected and actual experience for FYE Initial Balance
Initial Amortization 

Period

Annual 

Recognition

Unamortized Balance as 

of April 30, 2021

April 30, 2019  0  0  0 N/A$ $ $

April 30, 2020 (9,631)  8 (1,204) (7,223)$ $ $

April 30, 2021  50,939  8  6,367  44,572 $ $ $

Changes in assumptions for FYE Initial Balance
Initial Amortization 

Period

Annual 

Recognition

Unamortized Balance as 

of April 30, 2021

April 30, 2019  3,153  8  394  1,971 $ $ $

April 30, 2020  15,201  8  1,900  11,401 $ $ $

April 30, 2021  41,908  8  5,239  36,669 $ $ $

Unamortized Balance as 

of April 30, 2021

Annual 

Recognition

Initial Amortization 

Period
Initial Balance

Net Difference between projected and actual earnings in 

OPEB plan investments for FYE

April 30, 2019  0  0  0 N/A$ $$

April 30, 2020  0  0  0 N/A$ $$

April 30, 2021  0  0  0 N/A$ $$

Page 7



Champaign Park District GASB 75 Valuation for Fiscal Year Ending April 30, 2021 

GASB Disclosures

Deferred Outflows / (Inflows) of Resources (Continued)

Deferred Outflows Deferred InflowsAs of fiscal year ending April 30, 2021

Differences between expected and actual experience  44,572 (7,223)$ $

Changes in assumptions  50,041  0 

Net difference between projected and actual earnings in OPEB plan investments N/A N/A

Total  94,613 $ (7,223)$

Annual Amortization of Deferred Outflows / (Inflows)

The balances as of April 30, 2021 of the deferred outflows / (inflows) of resources will be recognized in OPEB expense in the future fiscal years as noted 

below.

FYE Balance

 12,696 $ 2022

 12,696 $ 2023

 12,696 $ 2024

 12,696 $ 2025

 12,697 $ 2026

 23,909 Thereafter $

Page 8



Champaign Park District GASB 75 Valuation for Fiscal Year Ending April 30, 2021 

GASB Disclosures

Sensitivity Results

The following presents the Net OPEB Liability as of April 30, 2021, 

calculated using the discount rate assumed and what it would be 

using a 1% higher and 1% lower discount rate.  

· The current discount rate is 2.27%.  

· The 1% decrease in discount rate would be 1.27%.

· The 1% increase in discount rate would be 3.27%.

The following presents the Net OPEB Liability as of April 30, 2021, using the 

health care trend rates assumed and what it would be using 1% higher and 1% 

lower health care trend rates.  

· The current health care trend rate starts at an initial rate of 8.00%,

decreasing to an ultimate rate of 4.50%.  

· The 1% decrease in health care trend rates would assume an initial rate

of 7.00%, decreasing to an ultimate rate of 3.50%.  

· The 1% increase in health care trend rates would assume an initial rate

of 9.00%, decreasing to an ultimate rate of 5.50%.
As of April 30, 2021 Net OPEB Liability

1% Decrease

Current Discount Rate

1% Increase
As of April 30, 2021 Net OPEB Liability

1% Increase

1% Decrease

Current Trend Rates

 421,490 

 397,632 

 446,389 

 386,594 

 421,490 

 462,215 

$

$

$
$

$

$

Page 9



Projection of GASB Disclosures
Champaign Park District GASB 75 Valuation for Fiscal Year Ending April 30, 2021

The Total OPEB Liability (TOL) is expected to change on an annual basis as a result of expected and unexpected events. Under normal circumstances, it is

generally expected to have a net increase each year. Below is a list of the most common events affecting the total OPEB liability and whether they increase

or decrease the liability.

Expected Events

· Increases in TOL due to additional benefit accruals as 

employees continue to earn service each year 

· Increases in TOL due to interest as the employees and 

retirees age 

· Decreases in TOL due to benefit payments

Unexpected Events

· Increases in TOL when actual premium rates increase more than expected. A liability

  decrease occurs when the reverse happens. 

· Increases in TOL when more new retirements occur than expected or fewer terminations

  occur than anticipated. Liability decreases occur when the opposite outcomes happen. 

· Increases or decreases in TOL depending on whether benefits are improved or reduced.

Projection of Total OPEB Liability 

(TOL)
FY 2020/21 FY 2021/22 

TOL as of beginning of year  320,633  421,490 $ $

Normal cost as of beginning of year  17,628  17,617 

Exp. benefit payments during the year (19,217) (32,390)

Interest adjustment to end of year  9,599  9,602 

Exp. TOL as of end of year  328,643  416,319 $ $

Actuarial Loss / (Gain)  92,847 TBD

Actual TOL as of end of year  421,490 TBD$ $

Discount rate as of beginning of year  2.92%  2.27%

Discount rate as of end of year TBD 2.27%

Page 10



Champaign Park District GASB 75 Valuation for Fiscal Year Ending April 30, 2021

Cash Flow Projections

The below projections show the actuarially estimated employer-paid contributions for retiree health benefits for the next thirty years. Results are shown 

separately for a closed group of current/future retirees. These projections include explicit and implicit subsidies. 

FYE
Current 

Retirees

Future 

Retirees*
Total FYE

Current 

Retirees

Future 

Retirees*
Total FYE

Current 

Retirees

Future 

Retirees*
Total

 2022  2032  2042  29,729  0  0  2,661  34,620  12,176  32,390  34,620  12,176 $$$$$$$$$

 2023  2033  2043  27,085  0  0  6,744  30,387  17,728  33,829  30,387  17,728 $$$$$$$$$

 2024  2034  2044  28,925  0  0  6,449  27,959  15,621  35,374  27,959  15,621 $$$$$$$$$

 2025  2035  2045  25,229  0  0  9,974  24,322  11,278  35,203  24,322  11,278 $$$$$$$$$

 2026  2036  2046  26,660  0  0  11,288  16,751  16,066  37,948  16,751  16,066 $$$$$$$$$

 2027  2037  2047  21,434  0  0  16,542  20,309  24,619  37,976  20,309  24,619 $$$$$$$$$

 2028  2038  2048  11,129  0  0  20,261  16,370  29,812  31,390  16,370  29,812 $$$$$$$$$

 2029  2039  2049  11,573  0  0  24,921  14,465  17,750  36,494  14,465  17,750 $$$$$$$$$

 2030  2040  2050  0  0  0  25,844  10,851  25,593  25,844  10,851  25,593 $$$$$$$$$

 2031  2041  2051  0  0  0  33,726  14,289  23,785  33,726  14,289  23,785 $$$$$$$$$

Projected Employer Pay-go Cost

0K

5K

10K

15K

20K

25K

30K

35K

40K

2022 2024 2026 2028 2030 2032 2034 2036 2038 2040 2042 2044 2046 2048 2050

Current Retirees Future Retirees

T
h

o
u

sa
n

d
s

* Projections for future retirees do not take into account future new hires.

Page 11



 Page 12 

 

Discussion of Discount Rates 
Champaign Park District GASB 75 Valuation for Fiscal Year Ending April 30, 2021 
 
Under GASB 75, the discount rate used in valuing OPEB liabilities for unfunded plans as of the Measurement Date must be based on a yield for 20-year 
tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of AA /Aa or higher (or equivalent quality on another rating scale). 
 
For the current valuation, the discount rate was selected from the range of indices as shown in the table below, where the range is given as the spread 
between the lowest and highest rate shown. 
 

 
Bond Buyer Go 20-

Bond Municipal 
Bond Index 

S&P Municipal Bond 
20-Year High Grade 

Rate Index 

Fidelity 20-Year 
Go Municipal 
Bond Index 

Bond Index Range 
Actual 

Discount 
Rate Used 

Yield as of May 1, 2020 2.36% 2.85% 2.92% 2.36% - 2.92% 2.92% 

Yield as of April 30, 2021 2.27% 1.83% 2.12% 1.83% - 2.27% 2.27% 

1.25%

1.75%

2.25%

2.75%

3.25%

Apr-20 Jul-20 Oct-20 Jan-21 Apr-21

20-Year Municipal Bond Indices

Bond Buyer 20-Bond GO Index S&P Municipal Bond 20 Year High Grade Rate Index

Fidelity GO AA - 20 Yrs Nyhart recommended



 Page 13 

 

Summary of Plan Participants 
Champaign Park District GASB 75 Valuation for Fiscal Year Ending April 30, 2021 
 

Active Employees  
 

Actives with coverage Single Non-Single1 Total Avg. Age Avg. Svc Salary 

HMO 55 11 66 42.7 8.9 $ 3,367,228 

Total actives with coverage 55 11 66 42.7 8.9 $ 3,367,228 
 
 

Actives without coverage Single Non-Single Total Avg. Age Avg. Svc Salary 

Total actives without coverage   - - - $ - 

 
Actives without coverage are assumed not to elect coverage at retirement and have been excluded from this GASB valuation. 
 

Active Age-Service Distribution 
 

 Years of Service  

Age <  1 1 to 4 5 to 9 10 to 14 15 to 19 20 to 24 25 to 29 30 to 34 35 to 39 40 & up Total 

Under 25 1          1 

25 to 29 3 6 2        11 

30 to 34 1 5 2        8 

35 to 39 2 3 6 1 1      13 

40 to 44 2 1 3 1  1     8 

45 to 49 1 1  1 1      4 

50 to 54   2 3 1 2 1 1   10 

55 to 59   1 1 1   1   4 

60 to 64 1 1 1   2  1   6 

65 to 69           0 

70 & up      1     1 

Total 11 17 17 7 4 6 1 3 0 0 66 

 
1 Includes Member + Spouse coverage and Family coverage.  



 Page 14 

 

Summary of Plan Participants 
Champaign Park District GASB 75 Valuation for Fiscal Year Ending April 30, 2021 
 
Retirees 
 

Retirees with coverage Single Non-Single2 Total Avg. Age 

HMO 3 1 4 60.6 

Medicare Supplement 1 1 2 76.7 

Total retirees with coverage 4 2 6 65.9 

 
  

 
2 Includes Member + Spouse coverage and Family coverage.  

 
Retiree Age Distribution 
 

Age Retirees 

< 45  

45 to 49  

50 to 54  

55 to 59 2 

60 to 64 2 

65 to 69 1 

70 to 74  

75 to 79  

80 to 84  

85 to 89 1 

90 & up  

Total 6 



 

 Page 15 

 

Substantive Plan Provisions 
Champaign Park District GASB 75 Valuation for Fiscal Year Ending April 30, 2021 
 
Eligibility All employees are eligible for retiree health care coverage until Medicare eligibility once they meet the 

eligibility requirements shown below for pension benefits.  At Medicare eligibility, retirees may purchase 
Medicare Supplemental coverage. 

 
 Eligibility requirements under Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF) are as follows: 

1. Tier 1 (IMRF member prior to January 1, 2011): 
a. Reduced pension – at least age 55 with 8 years of service 
b. Unreduced pension – at least age 60 with 8 years of service or age 55 with 35 years of service 

2. Tier 2 (IMRF member on / after January 1, 2011): 
a. Reduced pension – at least age 62 with 10 years of service 
b. Unreduced pension – at least age 67 with 10 years of service or age 62 with 35 years of service 

 
Spouse Benefit Surviving spouse can continue coverage after the death of the retiree.  
 
Explicit Subsidy None.  
 
Retiree Cost Sharing Retirees pay the full cost of coverage.  
 
Medical Benefits Same benefit options are available to retirees as active employees.  Champaign Park District provides a 

health plan that is fully-insured and experience-rated. The monthly premiums effective on March 1, 2020 
and March 1, 2021 are as shown below. 

 

 3/1/2020 3/1/2021 

 Retiree Retiree + Spouse Retiree Retiree + Spouse 

HMO $ 667.16 $ 1,579.40 $ 667.16 $ 1,579.40 



 

 Page 16 

 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 
Champaign Park District GASB 75 Valuation for Fiscal Year Ending April 30, 2021 
 
The actuarial assumptions used in this report represent a reasonable long-term expectation of future OPEB outcomes. As national economic and Park 
District experience change over time, the assumptions will be tested for ongoing reasonableness and, if necessary, updated. 
 
We expect to update discount rate, health care trend rates, mortality table, and per capita costs in the next full GASB valuation, which will be for the fiscal 
year ending April 30, 2023.  
 
Measurement Date For fiscal year ending April 30, 2021, an April 30, 2021 measurement date was used. 
 
Actuarial Valuation Date April 30, 2021 with no adjustments to get to the April 30, 2021 measurement date. Liabilities as of May 1, 

2020 are based on an actuarial valuation date of April 30, 2021 projected to May 1, 2020 on a “no loss / no 
gain” basis. 

 
Discount Rate 2.92% as of May 1, 2020 and 2.27% as of April 30, 2021 for accounting disclosure purposes. 
 Refer to the Discussion of Discount Rates section for more information on selection of the discount rate. 
 
Payroll Growth Payroll growth including general wage inflation of 2.75% (includes 2.25% price inflation and 0.50% 

productivity increases and other macroeconomic forces) plus merit/longevity increases as shown below, 
which are based on the Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF) actuarial valuation as of December 31, 
2020. Sample merit/productivity increases are shown in the table below.  

 
Regular  

< 5 Years of Service 5+ Years of Service  

YOS Merit Age Merit  

0 7.10% 25 2.50%  

1 6.40% 30 2.02%  

2 3.60% 35 1.34%  

3 2.70% 40 0.98%  

4 2.20% 45 0.72%  

  50 0.48%  

  55 0.28%  

  60+ 0.14%  

 
Inflation Rate 2.25% per year  
  



 

 Page 17 

 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 
Champaign Park District GASB 75 Valuation for Fiscal Year Ending April 30, 2021 
 
Cost Method Allocation of Actuarial Present Value of Future Benefits for services prior and after the Measurement Date 

was determined using Entry Age Normal Level % of Salary method where: 
• Service Cost for each individual participant, payable from date of employment to date of retirement, 

is sufficient to pay for the participant’s benefit at retirement; and 
• Annual Service Cost is a constant percentage of the participant’s salary that is assumed to increase 

according to the Payroll Growth. 
 
Employer Funding Policy Pay-as-you-go cash basis 
 
Census Data Census information was provided by the Park District in July 2021. We have reviewed it for reasonableness 

and no material modifications were made to the census data. 
 
Health Care Coverage Election Rate Active employees with current coverage: 50% 
 Active employees with no coverage: 0% 
 
 Inactive employees with current coverage: 100% 
 Inactive employees with no coverage: 0% 
 
Spousal Coverage Spousal coverage for current and future retirees is based on actual data. Husbands are assumed to be three 

years older than wives.  
 
Disability No disability rates are assumed. 
 
Mortality For general Actives and Retirees: SOA Pub-2010 General Headcount Weighted Mortality Table fully 

generational using Scale MP-2020  
 
 For Surviving Spouses: SOA Pub-2010 Contingent Survivor Headcount Weighted Mortality Table fully 

generational using Scale MP-2020  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 Page 18 

 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 
Champaign Park District GASB 75 Valuation for Fiscal Year Ending April 30, 2021 
 
Turnover Rate Assumption used to project terminations (voluntary and involuntary) prior to meeting minimum retirement 

eligibility for retiree health coverage. The rates represent the probability of termination in the next 12 
months. The termination rates are based on the Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF) actuarial 
valuation as of December 31, 2020. Sample annual turnover rates are shown below: 

  

   (Males) 
Years of Service 

Age 0 2 4 6 8+ 

25 24.8% 15.3% 10.7% 7.7% 4.8% 

30 24.8% 15.3% 10.7% 7.7% 4.8% 

40 24.8% 15.3% 10.7% 7.7% 3.0% 

50 24.8% 15.3% 10.7% 7.7% 2.1% 

  
 

 (Females) 
Years of Service 

Age 0 2 4 6 8+ 

25 27.7% 17.8% 12.0% 9.2% 7.7% 

30 27.7% 17.8% 12.0% 9.2% 7.7% 

40 27.7% 17.8% 12.0% 9.2% 4.6% 

50 27.7% 17.8% 12.0% 9.2% 3.2% 

 
 



 

 Page 19 

 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 
Champaign Park District GASB 75 Valuation for Fiscal Year Ending April 30, 2021 
 
Retirement Rate Sample annual rates of retirement shown below are based on the IMRF actuarial valuation as of December 

31, 2020. 
 

 IMRF Tier I 
 Male  Female 

Age 10 YOS 20 YOS 30 YOS 35+ YOS  10 YOS 20 YOS 30 YOS 35+ YOS 

55 7.0% 7.0% 7.0% 33.0%  6.1% 6.1% 6.1% 29.5% 
60 13.0% 13.0% 13.0% 13.0%  11.5% 11.5% 11.5% 11.5% 
65 26.0% 26.0% 26.0% 26.0%  27.0% 27.0% 27.0% 27.0% 
70 26.0% 26.0% 26.0% 26.0%  25.5% 25.5% 25.5% 25.5% 
75 23.0% 23.0% 23.0% 23.0%  24.0% 24.0% 24.0% 24.0% 

80+ 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%  100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 
          
 IMRF Tier II 
 Male  Female 

Age 10 YOS 20 YOS 30 YOS 35+ YOS  10 YOS 20 YOS 30 YOS 35+ YOS 

60 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%  0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 
62 15.0% 15.0% 15.0% 75.0%  13.0% 13.0% 13.0% 75.0% 
65 15.0% 15.0% 15.0% 75.0%  13.0% 13.0% 13.0% 75.0% 
70 20.0% 20.0% 50.0% 75.0%  18.0% 18.0% 50.0% 75.0% 
75 18.0% 18.0% 50.0% 75.0%  18.0% 18.0% 50.0% 75.0% 
80 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%  100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 

  
  



 

 Page 20 

 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 
Champaign Park District GASB 75 Valuation for Fiscal Year Ending April 30, 2021 
 
Health Care Trend Rates  FYE Medical/Rx FYE Medical/Rx 
 2022 8.0% 2026 6.0% 
 2023 7.5% 2027 5.5% 
 2024 7.0% 2028 5.0% 
 2025 6.5% 2029+ 4.5% 
  
Retiree Contributions Retiree contributions are assumed to increase according to health care trend rates. 
 
Per Capita Costs Annual per capita costs were calculated based on the Park District’s 2021 medical premium rates, actuarially 

increased using health index factors and current enrollment.  The costs are assumed to increase with health 
care trend rates.  

 
 Annual per capita costs are as shown below: 
 

Age HMO 

 < 55 $ 10,100 

55 – 59 $ 12,500 

60 – 64 $ 15,900 

 
  
  
   

 
 
  

The initial trend rate was based on a combination of 
employer history, national trend surveys, and 
professional judgment. 
 
The ultimate trend rate was selected based on 
historical medical CPI information. 

The per capita costs represent the cost of 
coverage for a retiree-only population. 
 
Actuarial standards require the recognition of 
higher inherent costs for a retired population 
versus an active population. 



 

 Page 21 

 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 
Champaign Park District GASB 75 Valuation for Fiscal Year Ending April 30, 2021 
 
Explicit Subsidy The difference between (a) the premium rate and (b) the retiree contribution.  Below is an example of the 

monthly explicit subsidies for a retiree and spouse both age 58 enrolled in the HMO plan. 
 

 
Premium 

Rate 
Retiree 

Contribution 
Explicit 
Subsidy 

 A B C = A – B 

Retiree $ 667.16 $ 667.16 $  0.00 

Spouse $ 912.24 $ 912.24 $  0.00 

 
Implicit Subsidy The difference between (a) the per capita cost and (b) the premium rate.  Below is an example of the 

monthly implicit subsidies for a retiree and spouse both age 58 enrolled in the HMO plan. 
 

 
Per Capita 

Cost 
Premium 

Rate 
Implicit 
Subsidy 

 A B C = A – B 

Retiree $ 1,041.67 $ 667.16 $ 374.51 

Spouse $ 1,041.67 $ 912.24 $ 129.43 

 
GASB Subsidy Breakdown Below is a breakdown of the GASB 75 monthly total cost 

for a retiree and spouse both age 58 enrolled in the 
HMO plan.  

 
 Retiree Spouse 

Retiree contribution $ 667.16 $ 912.24 

Explicit subsidy $ 0.00 $ 0.00 

Implicit subsidy $ 374.51 $ 129.43 

Total monthly cost $ 1,041.67 $ 1,041.67 

 

All employers that utilize premium rates based on 
blended active/retiree claims experience will have 
an implicit subsidy. There is an exception for 
Medicare plans using a true community-rated 
premium rate. 

$0

$400

$800

$1,200

Retiree Spouse

$667
$912

$375
$129

GASB Subsidy Breakdown

Retiree contribution Explicit subsidy
Implicit subsidy



 

 Page 22 

 

APPENDIX 
 

 



 

 Page 23 

 

Appendix 
Champaign Park District GASB 75 Valuation for Fiscal Year Ending April 30, 2021 
 
Comparison of Participant Demographic Information 
 
The active participants’ number below may include active employees who currently have no health care coverage. Refer to Summary of Participants 
section for an accurate breakdown of active employees with and without coverage. 
 
 

  As of April 30, 2019 As of April 30, 2021 

Active Participants  79 66 

    

Retired Participants  4 6 

    

Averages for Active    

Age  42.7 42.7 

Service  9.2 8.9 

    

Averages for Inactive    

Age  67.1 65.9 

  



 

 Page 24 

 

Appendix 
Champaign Park District GASB 75 Valuation for Fiscal Year Ending April 30, 2021 
 
Detailed Actuary’s Notes 
 
There have been no substantive plan provision changes since the last full valuation, which was for the fiscal year ending April 30, 2019. 
 
The following assumptions have been updated: 
 

1. Discount rate as of the Measurement Date is based on a yield for 20-year tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of 
AA/Aa or higher (or equivalent quality on another rating scale). The prior full valuation used a discount rate of 2.92% as of May 1, 2020. The current 
full valuation uses a discount rate of 2.27% as of April 30, 2021. This change has caused an increase in liabilities. 

 
2. Mortality table has been updated from SOA RPH-2018 Total Dataset Mortality Table fully generational using Scale MP-2018 to: 

 
a. General Actives and Retirees: SOA Pub-2010 General Headcount Weighted Mortality Table fully generational using Scale MP-2020 
b. Surviving Spouses: SOA Pub-2010 Contingent Survivor Headcount Weighted Mortality Table fully generational using Scale MP-2020 

 
The impact of this change is a slight increase in liabilities. 
 

3. Health care trend rates have been updated to an initial rate of 8.0% decreasing by 0.5% annually to an ultimate rate of 4.5%.  This change caused 
an increase in liabilities. 
 

4. The retirement tables, termination tables, and salary scale assumption has been updated to reflect the most recent Illinois Municipal Retirement 
Fund Actuarial Valuation as of December 31, 2020. Making these changes caused an increase in liabilities. 
 

 
 

  



 

 Page 25 

 

GLOSSARY 
 

 



 

 Page 26 

 

Glossary – Decrements Exhibit 
Champaign Park District GASB 75 Valuation for Fiscal Year Ending April 30, 2021 
 
The table below illustrates how actuarial assumptions can affect a long-term projection of future liabilities. Starting with 100 employees at age 35, the 
illustrated actuarial assumptions show that 44.43 employees out of the original 100 are expected to retire and could elect retiree health benefits at age 55. 
 

Age 
# 

Remaining 
Employees 

# of 
Terminations 

per Year3 

# of Retirements 
per Year 

Total 
Decrements 

 Age 
# 

Remaining 
Employees 

# of 
Terminations 

per Year 

# of Retirements 
per Year 

Total 
Decrements 

35 100.000 6.276 0.000 6.276  46 55.938 2.085 0.000 2.085 
36 93.724 5.677 0.000 5.677  47 53.853 1.866 0.000 1.866 
37 88.047 5.136 0.000 5.136  48 51.987 1.656 0.000 1.656 
38 82.911 4.648 0.000 4.648  49 50.331 1.452 0.000 1.452 
39 78.262 4.209 0.000 4.209  50 48.880 1.253 0.000 1.253 
40 74.053 3.814 0.000 3.814  51 47.627 1.060 0.000 1.060 
41 70.239 3.456 0.000 3.456  52 46.567 0.877 0.000 0.877 
42 66.783 3.131 0.000 3.131  53 45.690 0.707 0.000 0.707 
43 63.652 2.835 0.000 2.835  54 44.983 0.553 0.000 0.553 
44 60.817 2.564 0.000 2.564  55 44.430 0.000 44.430 44.430 

45 58.253 2.316 0.000 2.316       

 

 

 
3 The above rates are illustrative rates and are not used in our GASB calculations. 

0

20

40

60

80

100

35 36 37 38 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48 49 50 51 52 53 54 55

Decrements Exhibit

Actives Total Terminations Total Retirements



 

 Page 27 

 

Glossary – Retirement Rates Exhibit 
Champaign Park District GASB 75 Valuation for Fiscal Year Ending April 30, 2021 
 
The table below illustrates how actuarial assumptions can affect a long-term projection of future liabilities. The illustrated retirement rates show the 
number of employees who are assumed to retire annually based on 100 employees age 55 who are eligible for retiree health care coverage. The average 
age at retirement is 62.0.  
 

Age 
Active 

Employees 
BOY 

Annual 
Retirement 

Rates* 

# 
Retirements 

per Year 

Active 
Employees 

EOY 
55 100.000 5.0% 5.000 95.000 

56 95.000 5.0% 4.750 90.250 

57 90.250 5.0% 4.513 85.738 

58 85.738 5.0% 4.287 81.451 

59 81.451 5.0% 4.073 77.378 

60 77.378 5.0% 3.869 73.509 

61 73.509 5.0% 3.675 69.834 

62 69.834 30.0% 20.950 48.884 

63 48.884 15.0% 7.333 41.551 

64 41.551 15.0% 6.233 35.318 

65 35.318 100.0% 35.318 0.000 

 
* The above rates are illustrative rates and are not used in our GASB calculations. 

0

20

40

60

80

100

55 56 57 58 59 60 61 62 63 64 65

Retirement Rates Exhibit

Actives Total Retirements



 

 Page 28 

 

Glossary – Definitions 
Champaign Park District GASB 75 Valuation for Fiscal Year Ending April 30, 2021 
 
GASB 75 defines several unique terms not commonly employed in the funding of pension and retiree health plans. The definitions of the terms used in the 
GASB actuarial valuations are noted below. 
 
1. Actuarial Assumptions – Assumptions as to the occurrence of future events affecting health care costs, such as: mortality, withdrawal, disablement 

and retirement; changes in compensation and Government provided health care benefits; rates of investment earnings and asset appreciation or 
depreciation; procedures used to determine the Actuarial Value of Assets; characteristics of future entrants for Open Group Actuarial Cost Methods; 
and other relevant items. 

 
2. Actuarial Cost Method – A procedure for determining the Actuarial Present Value of Future Benefits and expenses and for developing an actuarially 

equivalent allocation of such value to time periods, usually in the form of a Service Cost and a Total OPEB Liability. 
 
3. Actuarially Determined Contribution - A target or recommended contribution to a defined benefit OPEB plan for the reporting period, determined 

in accordance with the parameters and in conformity with Actuarial Standards of Practice. 
 
4. Actuarial Present Value – The value of an amount or series of amounts payable or receivable at various times, determined as of a given date by the 

application of a particular set of Actuarial Assumptions. For purposes of this standard, each such amount or series of amounts is: 
a. adjusted for the probable financial effect of certain intervening events (such as changes in compensation levels, Social Security, marital status, 

etc.); 
b. multiplied by the probability of the occurrence of an event (such as survival, death, disability, termination of employment, etc.) on which the 

payment is conditioned; and 
c. discounted according to an assumed rate (or rates) of return to reflect the time value of money. 

 
5. Deferred Outflow / (Inflow) of Resources – represents the following items that have not been recognized in the OPEB Expense: 

a. Differences between expected and actual experience of the OPEB plan 
b. Changes in assumptions 
c. Differences between projected and actual earnings in OPEB plan investments (for funded plans only) 

 
6. Explicit Subsidy – The difference between (a) the amounts required to be contributed by the retirees based on the premium rates and (b) actual cash 

contribution made by the employer. 
 
7. Funded Ratio – The actuarial value of assets expressed as a percentage of the Total OPEB Liability. 
 



 

 Page 29 

 

Glossary – Definitions 
Champaign Park District GASB 75 Valuation for Fiscal Year Ending April 30, 2021 
 
8. Healthcare Cost Trend Rate – The rate of change in the per capita health claims costs over time as a result of factors such as medical inflation, 

utilization of healthcare services, plan design, and technological developments. 
 
9. Implicit Subsidy – In an experience-rated healthcare plan that includes both active employees and retirees with blended premium rates for all plan 

members, the difference between (a) the age-adjusted premiums approximating claim costs for retirees in the group (which, because of the effect of 
age on claim costs, generally will be higher than the blended premium rates for all group members) and (b) the amounts required to be contributed by 
the retirees.  

 
10. OPEB – Benefits (such as death benefits, life insurance, disability, and long-term care) that are paid in the period after employment and that are 

provided separately from a pension plan, as well as healthcare benefits paid in the period after employment, regardless of the manner in which they 
are provided. OPEB does not include termination benefits or termination payments for sick leave. 

 
11. OPEB Expense – Changes in the Net OPEB Liability in the current reporting period, which includes Service Cost, interest cost, changes of benefit terms, 

expected earnings on OPEB Plan investments, reduction of active employees’ contributions, OPEB plan administrative expenses, and current period 
recognition of Deferred Outflows / (Inflows) of Resources.  

 
12. Pay-as-you-go – A method of financing a benefit plan under which the contributions to the plan are generally made at about the same time and in 

about the same amount as benefit payments and expenses becoming due. 
 
13. Per Capita Costs – The current cost of providing postretirement health care benefits for one year at each age from the youngest age to the oldest age 

at which plan participants are expected to receive benefits under the plan. 
 
14. Present Value of Future Benefits – Total projected benefits include all benefits estimated to be payable to plan members (retirees and beneficiaries, 

terminated employees entitled to benefits but not yet receiving them, and current active members) as a result of their service through the valuation 
date and their expected future service. The actuarial present value of total projected benefits as of the valuation date is the present value of the cost to 
finance benefits payable in the future, discounted to reflect the expected effects of the time value (present value) of money and the probabilities of 
payment. Expressed another way, it is the amount that would have to be invested on the valuation date so that the amount invested plus investment 
earnings will provide sufficient assets to pay total projected benefits when due. 

 
15. Real Rate of Return – the rate of return on an investment after adjustment to eliminate inflation. 
 



 

 Page 30 

 

Glossary – Definitions 
Champaign Park District GASB 75 Valuation for Fiscal Year Ending April 30, 2021 
 
16. Select and Ultimate Rates – Actuarial assumptions that contemplate different rates for successive years. Instead of a single assumed rate with 

respect to, for example, the investment return assumption, the actuary may apply different rates for the early years of a projection and a single rate 
for all subsequent years. For example, if an actuary applies an assumed investment return of 8% for year 20W0, then 7.5% for 20W1, and 7% for 20W2 
and thereafter, then 8% and 7.5% select rates, and 7% is the ultimate rate. 

 
17. Service Cost – The portion of the Actuarial Present Value of projected benefit payments that are attributed to a valuation year by the Actuarial Cost 

Method. 
 
18. Substantive Plan – The terms of an OPEB plan as understood by the employer(s) and plan members. 
 
19. Total OPEB Liability – That portion, as determined by a particular Actuarial Cost Method, of the Actuarial Present Value of Future Benefits which is 

attributed to past periods of employee service (or not provided for by the future Service Costs). 



The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community’s quality of life through 
positive experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts. 

 
 

 
 

 
 
REPORT TO PARK BOARD 
 
FROM:  Joe DeLuce, Executive Director 
 
DATE:  August 31, 2021  
 
SUBJECT:   Approval of Ordinance No.  653 - Providing for the Disposal of Personal Property 

Owned by the Champaign Park District of Champaign County   
 
Background 
Pursuant to the Park District Code, 70 ILCS 1205/8-22, every park district is authorized to sell or 
convey any personal property that in the opinion of three-fifths of the members of the Board of Park 
Commissioners then holding office is no longer necessary, useful to, or for the best interests of the 
park district, and in any manner they may designate with or without advertising. Staff have 
determined that certain property it owns, listed in Attachment A, is no longer necessary, useful to 
or for the best interests of the Champaign Park District to retain. Staff is requesting authorization 
for the surplus to be conveyed or sold to the highest bidder, with or without advertising the sale, or 
otherwise disposed of on terms as may be approved by the Executive Director. 
 
CPD’s standard suggests that items valued over $1,000 at the time of their original purchase be 
declared surplus by the Board prior to disposal.  Items with an unknown original purchase price 
may also be included in the request.   
 
Prior Board Action 
The last surplus action was  at the January 13, 2021 Regular Board Meeting. 
 
Budget Impact 
Any proceeds received from the sale of these items will be put back into the Capital Improvement 
Fund as special receipts.     
 
Recommended Action 
Staff recommends the Board adopt Ordinance No. 653 - An Ordinance providing for the disposal of 
personal property owned by the Champaign Park District of Champaign County, which will allow for 
the disposal of equipment as listed on Attachment A. 
 
 
Prepared by:       Reviewed by:       
Dan Olson        Jarrod Scheunemann                          
Director of Operations      Assistant to Executive Director 
                       
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community’s quality of life through 
positive experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts. 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 653 
 

AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR THE DISPOSAL OF 
PERSONAL PROPERTY OWNED BY THE CHAMPAIGN PARK DISTRICT. 

 
  WHEREAS, the Champaign Park District pursuant to the Park District Code, 70 ILCS 

1205/8-22, is granted the ability to dispose of personal property, and 

 

  WHEREAS, the Champaign Park District has determined that certain property it owns is 

no longer necessary, useful to, or in its best interests to retain. 

 

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners of the 

Champaign Park District of Champaign County, Illinois as follows: 

 

 Section 1. The Board of Commissioners hereby authorizes that said property shall be 

conveyed or sold to the highest bidder, with or without advertising the sale, or otherwise 

disposed of on terms as may be approved by the Executive Director. 

 

 Section 2. The items of personal property to be conveyed, sold, or disposed of are 

listed in Attachment A. 

 

 PASSED AND APPROVED by three-fifths vote of the Board of Commissioners of the 

Champaign Park District this 9th day of September, 2021. 

 
 
 APPROVED: 
 
 
 _______________________ 
 Kevin J. Miller, Board President 
 
 
 ATTEST: 
 
 
 _________________________ 
 Jarrod Scheunemann, Board Secretary 
 
 
 
 
 
 



The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community’s quality of life through 
positive experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

ATTACHMENT  A 
 
Stationary Greenhouse Benches – Quantity 20 
Original Purchase Amount and Date – Approx. $225 each.  Purchase date unknown. 
At Operations building.  Size 4’ X 8’ X 30”.  Aluminum frame and legs w/ plastic tops.  Some are 
damaged from use. 
 
Greenhouse Table Tops – Quantity 5 
Original Purchase Amount and Date – Approx. $225 each.  Date unknown. 
At Operations building.  Size 4’ X 8’.  Expanded metal top with aluminum frame.  No legs. 
 
Aluminum Trusses – Quantity 4 
Original Purchase Amount and Date – Amount and Date unknown. 
From Virginia Theatre.  Size 10 feet long and 12 1/2 “ square.  Bases have eight bolt holes. 
 
 



 
 

The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community’s quality of life through 
positive experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts. 

 
 
 
REPORT TO PARK BOARD 
 
FROM: Joe DeLuce, Executive Director 
 
DATE: August 31, 2021 
 
SUBJECT: Approval of Submitting an Annexation Petition 
 
Background: 
The City of Champaign recently annexed property as shown in attachment 1.  The Illinois Park 
District Code Section 3-10 provides: 
 

Whenever a Park District operating within territory predominantly in a city or 
village or two or more cities or villages would become coterminous or nearly 
coterminous with such city or village or two or more cities or villages upon the 
annexation of the additional territory within such municipalities but not 
incorporated within such a Park District, such Park District may annex such 
additional territory by the passage of an ordinance to that effect. 

 
A Park District Annexation Ordinance (attachment 2) prepared by the Park District Attorney 
must be signed, certified, and recorded with the County in order to be formally included within 
the boundary of the Champaign Park District. 
 
Prior Board Action: 
No prior Board action. 
 
Budget Impact: 
None. 
 
Recommendation: 
Staff recommends signing and certifying the attached Annexation Ordinance and recording it 
with the Champaign County Clerk. 
 
Prepared by:      Reviewed by: 
 
 
Andrew Weiss      Joe DeLuce 
Director of Planning     Executive Director 















- 1 - 
    

ORDINANCE NO.  654 

AN ORDINANCE ANNEXING TERRITORY 

TO CHAMPAIGN PARK DISTRICT 

_______________ 

 
WHEREAS, Champaign Park District is a 

General Park District organized and existing under the 

provisions of the Park District Code approved May 17, 

1951, as amended, and  

WHEREAS, Section 3-10 of the Park 

District Code provides: 

"Whenever a Park District operating 
within territory predominantly in a city or 
village or two or more cities or villages 
would become coterminous or nearly 
coterminous with such city or village or 
two or more cities or villages upon the annexation of the additional territory 
within such municipalities but not incorporated within such a Park District, such 
Park District may annex such additional territory by the passage of an ordinance 
to that effect." 

and 
WHEREAS, Champaign Park District is presently operating within a territory 

predominantly within the corporate limits of the City of Champaign, Illinois; and 

 

WHEREAS, the tracts of land hereinafter described are located within the corporate 

boundaries of the City of Champaign, Illinois, but are not presently incorporated within the present 

corporate boundaries of Champaign Park District or any other park district; and 

 

 WHEREAS, upon the annexation of said tracts of land hereinafter described by Champaign 

Park District, the boundaries of the City of Champaign, Illinois and of Champaign Park District will become 

coterminous or nearly coterminous; 

 

  

  

 



 

- 2 - 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF PARK 

COMMISSIONERS OF CHAMPAIGN PARK DISTRICT: 

 

Section 1.  The following described tracts of land be and the same are hereby annexed to 

Champaign Park District, effective as of the date of passage of this ordinance, and said tracts shall 

henceforth become and be a part of Champaign Park District the same as though originally included in said 

district. 

Section 2.  The territories hereby annexed are described as follows: 
 

TERRITORY PURSUANT TO PETITION 
(1216 W. Windsor Road, Champaign, Illinois) 

Council Bill No. 2021 – 107 
 
LOT 101 OF PETERS-REGAN SUBDIVISION RECORDED ON OCTOBER 11, 2019 IN THE 
CHAMPAIGN COUNTY RECORDER OF DEEDS OFFICE AS DOCUMENT NO. 2019R17009 
ENCOMPASSING 0.607 ACRE, MORE OR LESS, ALL LOCATED IN CHAMPAIGN COUNTY, 
ILLINOIS. 
 
SAID LOT 101 BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:  
 
PART OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 23, 
TOWNSHIP 19 NORTH, RANGE 8 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, CHAMPAIGN 
COUNTY, ILLINOIS.  
 
COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SAID 
SECTION 23, THENCE NORTH 00 DEGREES 28 MINUTES 20 SECONDS EAST 40.00 FEET ALONG 
THE EAST LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER TO THE NORTH-RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF 
WINDSOR ROAD; THENCE NORTH 89 DEGREES 39 MINUTES 10 SECONDS WEST 149.77 FEET 
ALONG SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, BEING THE SOUTHEAST 
CORNER OF A 30-FOOT WIDE FLAG EXTENSION OF LOT 101 IN PETERS-REGAN 
SUBDIVISION, RECORDED AS DOCUMENT NUMBER 2019R17009 IN THE OFFICE OF THE 
CHAMPAIGN COUNTY RECORDER.  FROM SAID POINT OF BEGINNING, THENCE CONTINUE 
NORTH 89 DEGREES 39 MINUTES 10 SECONDS WEST 30.00 FEET ALONG THE SOUTH LINE 
OF SAID FLAG EXTENSION TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID 30-FOOT WIDE FLAG 
EXTENSION; THENCE NORTH 00 DEGREES 29 MINUTES 06 SECONDS WEST 126.20 FEET 
ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID FLAG EXTENSION TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID 
FLAG EXTENSION, ALSO BEING ON THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID LOT 101; THENCE NORTH 89 
DEGREES 39 MINUTES 10 SECONDS WEST 149.60 FEET ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE TO THE 
SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 101, ALSO BEING ON THE EAST LINE OF ARGYLL 
ACRES, RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK “0” AT PAGE 74 IN THE OFFICE OF THE CHAMPAIGN 
COUNTY RECORDER; THENCE NORTH 00 DEGREES 29 MINUTES 06 SECONDS WEST 126.17 
FEET ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID LOT 101 AND SAID EAST LINE OF ARGYLL ACRES TO 
THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 101, ALSO BEING ON THE SOUTH LINE OF 
DEVONSHIRE WEST III SUBDIVISION, RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK “Z” AT PAGE 397 IN THE 
OFFICE OF THE CHAMPAIGN COUNTY RECORDER; THENCE SOUTH 89 DEGREES 39 
MINUTES 10 SECONDS EAST 179.60 FEET ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID LOT 101 AND 
SAID SOUTH LINE OF DEVONSHIRE WEST III SUBDIVISION TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER 
OF SAID LOT 101; THENCE SOUTH 00 DEGREES 29 MINUTES 06 SECONDS EAST 252.38 FEET 
ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID LOT 101 AND THE EAST LINE OF SAID 30 FOOT WIDE FLAG 
EXTENSION TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.  
 
(PIN: 03-20-23-380-019)  



 

- 3 - 

 
Commonly known as: 1216 W. Windsor Road, Champaign, IL 61821  
 
Together with any and all adjacent streets, highways, or parts thereof not now within the corporate limits 
of Champaign Park District, to the far side of said streets, highways or parts thereof. 

 
 

Section 3.  The Secretary of this Board is hereby authorized and directed to file a certified copy of 

this ordinance together with an accurate map of the territories hereby annexed, in the offices of the 

County Clerk and the Recorder of Deeds of Champaign County, Illinois. 

 

Section 4.  This ordinance shall be in full force from and after its passage and approval as required by law. 

PASSED this   __    day of   ______________   2021.  
 

APPROVED this   ___    day of    ____________     2021.  
 
 

____________________________________ 
Kevin J. Miller, President 

ATTEST: 
 

___________________________________ 
 
___________________________, Secretary 
 



  

  

CERTIFICATE OF SECRETARY 
 
 

I,   ___________________    , Secretary of Champaign Park District, do hereby certify that 
the foregoing is a true and correct copy of an Ordinance Annexing Territory to Champaign Park District 
duly adopted by the Board of Park Commissioners of said Park District at a regular meeting of said Board 
held the 14th  day of    October  2020.  
 

Dated this    ___   day of    _____________ 2021.  
 
 
 
  ______________________________________  
 
 __________________________, Secretary 
 Board of Park Commissioners 
 Champaign Park District 
 
 
OFFICIAL SEAL 
 
 
 
 
 
PREPARED BY AND RETURN TO: 
 
Guy Hall 
Champaign Park District 
706 Kenwood Road 
Champaign, IL  61821  



The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community’s quality of life through positive 
experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts. 

 
 
 

REPORT TO PARK BOARD 
 

FROM: Joe DeLuce, Executive Director 
 
DATE: September 8, 2021 
 
SUBJECT:  Pickleball Courts: Location and Budget 
 
Background 
Park District staff and Board have been working with Architectural Expressions (AEX) to identify 
potential multi-court pickleball facilities within the community. Seaman Field at Centennial Park and 
Parkland College are the two locations in consideration for the new pickleball complex. 
 
Neil Strack and his team have updated the pickleball complex concepts and cost estimates for both the 
Centennial Park and Parkland College locations. The updated concepts and cost estimates are 
attached for your review. 
 
Prior Board Action 
July 28, 2021 Special Meeting - $320,000 was approved in the FY22 Budget for a pickleball complex. 
August 25, 2021 Special Meeting - The Park Board voted not to seek an OSLAD Grant for $400,000 for 
a pickleball complex. 
 
Budget Impact 
The budget impact will be determined based upon an approved location and concept for a new 
pickleball complex. $320,000 was approved in the FY22 Capital Budget for a pickleball complex. 
 
Options 

A. Seaman Field (Centennial Park) includes 12 pickleball courts, lights, site work including 
detention, lights, fencing, restroom and concessions, and a 30-space parking lot for an 
estimated cost of $999,358.05. 

B. Parkland College (Tennis Courts) includes 12 pickleball courts, extended asphalt service for 
additional space for each court) new fencing, lights, and the removal of two tennis courts for an 
estimated cost of $785,129.79 

C. Reduce the number of courts to 6 or 9 for whichever location is selected. 
D. Construct 6 courts at Seaman Field in Centennial Park and 6 courts at Parkland College and 

see how each location works and then determine if additional courts are needed in the future. 
E. Complete the planned and approved additional courts at Hessel Park and then determine if 

additional courts are needed in the future. 
 
Discussion 
Staff seeks direction from the Board for pickleball complex site to pursue design and development. 
 
Prepared by:      Reviewed by: 
 
Joe DeLuce      Jarrod Scheunemann 
Executive Director     Asst. to the Executive Director 



PROJECT COST OPINION COMPARISON

Project: DATE: 8/11/2021
Owner: AEX#: 6379

Description:

Centenial Park Parkland 4c %

Pre-Planning Cost
Site Survey and Soil Investigation
Site Preparation (Incl. Demolition/Disposal) 10,000.00            
Hazardous Materials Remediation (Allowance)
Off-Site Work

WORK ITEM $/SF:
GENERAL- Concession Building Included 102,432.00          -           
                      No Concession Building /2-Porte Potties Included 28,000.00         
COURT CONSTRUCTION 267,017.72          315,017.72       -           

ELECTRICAL 81,000.00            96,625.00         -           
   Service Upgrade, Site Lighting

EQUIPMENT & FURNISHINGS -                      -           
SPECIAL CONSTRUCTION 61,794.00            57,360.00         -           
   Fencing 
SITE WORK 163,043.08          47,693.20         -           

  Sidewalks,Patios

685,286.80          544,695.92       -           
General Contractor Markups (General Conditions, Overhead, and Profit) 102,793.02$        81,704.39$       15%

SUBTOTAL CONSTRUCTION RELATED ITEMS 788,079.82$        626,400.31$     -           
Fixtures, Furnishings and Equipment (FFE)
Architectural/Engineering/ Civil Fees 70,927.18$          56,376.03$       9%
Owner's Rep -$                    
Other Consulting Fees: -$                    -$                  
Other Reimbursables (Printing)
Bonds, Permits and Fees (not included in construction contracts)
Fixed Capital Equipment (not in construction contracts)
Building or Property Acquisition
Other Costs

SUBTOTAL PROJECT RELATED ITEMS 869,007.00$        682,776.34$     -           
Contingency and Covid Multiplier 130,351.05$        102,416.45$     15%

TOTAL FOR PROJECT 999,358.05$        785,192.79$     -           

Total Construction Contracts

ITEM

Site Selection pickleball
Champaign Park District
Comparison Pickleball Complexes

Summary Architectural Expressions Confidential Page 1



Pickleball Courts Comparison
Champaign Park District
Preliminary September 1, 2021
Information shown based upon future completed Masterplan Complex

Parkland 4c Centennial Park
Site/Courts Data
Total acreage of park 69.6
% of site for courts 3.90%
Total number of courts 12 12
Court Size Preferred Preferred
Future Courts Yes-4 Yes-6
Shaded courts 0 Future
Direction/Orientation of courts N-S N-S
Combination courts 0 0

Parking and Access
Access from arterial street Yes Yes
Parking available on site Generous-Parkland Yes-Bresnan Center
New parking added 0 30
Options for future parking Yes Yes
Street parking in vicinity Yes No?
Off site parking options Yes Yes-Centennial, CPD parking after hours

Tournament Considerations
Easy access to Interstate Yes Yes
Viewing/bleacher options Yes Yes
Registration/hospitality space Yes Yes
Vendor space

Environmental Conditions and Impact
Neighborhood impact Minimal Minimal
Changes to trees/vegetation No No
Drainage issues No Detention Basin must be increased
Grading and fill needed Less Less
Lighting impact None None
Existing amenities removed No Ballfield
Perception Isolated Active/Students
Security On Arterial  Street Not clear view from street

Amenities
Restrooms-exisiting
Concessions-exisiting
Storage-new/added No Yes
Restrooms-New Porta-Potties budgeted for first 5 years of use Yes
Concessions-New No Yes

Pros and Cons

Property not owned by CPD Baseball Backstop would need to be removed
Width and length of courts expanded to preferred 

size Not a good current use for Seaman Field
Courts in really poor condition,removed and 

replaced Room for expansion for rmore courts

Next to Dodds Park, next to Parkland College Centrally located in the community

Not very visible from nearby roads Next to operations complex

Will players go to the site to play? May need to include windscrrens

Restroom initially are  porta potties
Wind could be an issue, will need to add 

windsreens



PROPERTY LINE

W. JOHN ST.

PHASE II,
COVERED STRUCTURE, 

PHASE I, 12 STANDARD COURTS

 PARKING 30 SPACES

SHADE STRUCTURES 
W/ BENCH SEATING 
ALTERNATE #1

SIDEWALK

PHASE II,
TOURNAMENT CENTER 
AND 6 COURTS

PHASE I,
CONCESSION AND 
RESTROOM STRUCTURE

PHASE II,
ADDITIONAL 14 PARKING 
SPACES AND ENTRY 
OFF W. JOHN ST.

PHASE II,
SIDEWALK

PHASE II,
PATH TO CONNECT BALL FIELD

WIDEN DETENSION BASIN APROX. 20'

64
'-0

"

34'-0"

Date

Drawn By

Checked By

Project Number

C
O

PY
R

IG
H

T 
  ©

   
BY

 A
R

C
H

IT
EC

TU
R

AL
 E

XP
R

ES
SI

O
N

S,
 L

LP
O

R
IG

IN
AL

 S
H

EE
T 

SI
ZE

:  
22

 X
 3

4

PRINTED ON

D
AT

E:

LI
C

. E
XP

, ;

A
C
H
IT
EC
TU
A
L

R
R

E
X
P
R
E
S
IO
N

L
L

S
S

P
A
R
C
H
IT
E

S
.
N
G

C
T

E
IN
E
E
R
S

ARCHITECTURAL EXPRESSIONS, LLP
100 CHESTNUT, SUITE 300, 

CHAMPAIGN, IL 61820
PHONE: 217-378-5300 FAX: 217-378-8512

www.aexllp.com
IL DESIGN FIRM No. 184-001487

9/1/2021 2:29:09 PM

SP101
AEX

JLK

09/01/21

6379

SI
TE

 P
LA

N

C
EN

TE
N

N
IA

L 
PA

R
K 

PI
C

KL
EB

AL
L

C
O

M
PL

EX
- P

H
AS

E 
I

C
H

AM
PA

IG
N

 P
AR

K 
D

IS
TR

IC
T

PRELIMINARY

C
H

AM
PA

IG
N

, I
L

No. Description Date

 1" = 40'-0"1 SITE PLAN

0 20' 40' 80'

N
O

R
TH

W E

S



PROJECT COST OPINION

Project: DATE: 8/19/2021
Owner: AEX#: 6379

Description: OWNR#:
Court:  SF $/SF: N/A REV#:

% AMOUNT

Pre-Planning Cost N/A
Site Survey and Soil Investigation N/A Need to determine grade and fill requirements
Site Preparation (Incl. Demolition/Disposal) 10,000.00$                Baseball fencing and dugouts
Hazardous Materials Remediation (Allowance) N/A
Off-Site Work N/A

WORK ITEM ESTIMATE $/SF:
GENERAL- Concession Building Included 102,432.00       -            
COURT CONSTRUCTION 267,017.72       -            

SHELL
SUPERSTRUCTURE -                    -            
EXTERIOR CLOSURE -                    -            
ROOFING -                    -            

INTERIORS -                    -            
SERVICES

CONVEYING -                    -            
PLUMBING -                    -            No site irrigation or drinking fountains included
HVAC -                    -            
FIRE PROTECTION -                    -            
ELECTRICAL 81,000.00         -            
   Service Upgrade, Site Lighting

EQUIPMENT & FURNISHINGS -                    -            
SPECIAL CONSTRUCTION 61,794.00         -            
   Fencing 
SITE WORK 163,043.08       -            

 Sidewalks,Patios
Site Preparation Demolition Disposal 10,000.00         

685,286.80       -            685,286.80$              
General Contractor Markups (General Conditions, Overhead, and Profit) 15% 102,793.02$              

SUBTOTAL CONSTRUCTION RELATED ITEMS -            788,079.82$              
Fixtures, Furnishings and Equipment (FFE)
Architectural/Engineering Fees (Estimated) 9% 70,927.18$                
Owner's Rep -$                          
Other Reimbursables (Printing)
Bonds, Permits and Fees (not included in construction contracts)
Fixed Capital Equipment (not in construction contracts)
Building or Property Acquisition
Archeological Investigation
Audit

SUBTOTAL PROJECT RELATED ITEMS -            869,007.00$              
Contingency 15% 130,351.05$              

TOTAL FOR PROJECT -            999,358.05$              

Total Construction Contracts

ITEM

Centennial Park Pickleball comple - Phase I
Champaign Park District
12 Court Pickleball Complex: 26112 SF

Summary Architectural Expressions Confidential Page 1



GENERAL- Concession Building Included
   Main Bldg.: 576 SF
   Pavillion/Breezeway: 
   Breezeway:
   Total: 576 SF
DESCRIPTION QUANTITY U UNIT COST COST
Future Work $0.00 

576 SF $157.00 $90,432.00 

AdditionaL  Bathrooms:  6 Fixtures 1 LS $12,000.00 $12,000.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 

CONSTRUCTION COST 102,432.00$     177.83$    SF

Custom 1-Story w/ brick veneer, wd frame, solid masonry



COURT CONSTRUCTION

DESCRIPTION QUANTITY U UNIT COST COST

Aggregate Base Course 2" Ave. 317 TON $51.00 $16,167.00 
Bit. Mtls. Prime Coat MC-30 721 GAL $6.00 $4,326.00 

HMA Bit. Binder Course 2" 324 Ton $130.00 $42,120.00 
Bit. Mtls. Tack Coat NTEA 290 GAL $8.00 $2,320.00 

HMA Bit. Surface Course 1 1/2" 362 TON $160.00 $57,920.00 
Install  foundations/Post/Anchors/ Nets/Etc. 12 SET $2,200.00 $26,400.00 

Paint Court color system/Stripping/Nets/ Posts/ Anchors 26,112 SF $2.60 $67,891.20 
$0.00 

Construction Layout 1 LS 6750 $6,750.00 
Mobilization of Equipment 1 LS 5000 $5,000.00 

$0.00 
Court Surface System(All Weather Court) 26,112 SF 1.46 $38,123.52 

$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 

CONSTRUCTION COST $267,017.72 22,251.00$   */SF



ELECTRICAL

DESCRIPTION QUANTITY U UNIT COST COST

Provide service for site lighting 1 LS $6,000.00 $6,000.00 
LED Site Lighting Courts 12 LS $5,000.00 $60,000.00 

LED Site lighting Parking Lot 5 EACH $3,000.00 $15,000.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 

CONSTRUCTION COST 81,000.00$      



SPECIAL CONSTRUCTION

DESCRIPTION QUANTITY U UNIT COST COST
Future-Shade Structure Structure; Shading 4 Courts 9250 SF $0.00 

90 SEATS $0.00 

Future-Flagpoles 2 EACH $0.00 
New Fence Screen 8' high 1031 LF $42.00 $43,302.00 
New Fence Screen 4' High 804 LF $23.00 $18,492.00 

Acousti Screen $0.00 
Future-Shade Canopies 4 LS $0.00 

$0.00    No signage included

CONSTRUCTION COST $61,794.00 

Future-Grandstand- 90 seats: Permanent closed deck, 
steel, composit design



SITE WORK

DESCRIPTION QUANTITY U UNIT COST COST
Expand Detension Basin 21,980 CF 0.3 $6,594.00 

Temporay Construction Fence 850 LF 13 $11,050.00 
Clean and Grub Site 1.68 Acre 11,902.00$   $19,995.36 

Bulk Excavation 5558 CY $2.95 $16,396.10 
Spread and compact dumped materials 5558 CY $3.39 $18,841.62 

Parking Lot for 30 cars,8' Base, 3" Bit. 30 PER CAR $1,683.00 $50,490.00 

Concrete Sidewalks/Patios, 6" 3800 SF $8.66 $32,908.00 
$0.00 

Fine Grading & Seeding 1600 SY $4.23 $6,768.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 

CONSTRUCTION COST $163,043.08 

Gross site 109,000 sf not including Green Park Development 
adust by .67% for 12 courts



REPLACE FENCE

12 STANDARD COURTS

EXISTING PARKING

PERIM
ETER RD.

EXISTING SOCCER FIELD

EXISTING BALL FIELD

34'-0"

64'-0"

GRASS AREA

EXPAND COURT SURFACE

8'-0"

NEW CROSS WALK AND SIDEWALK

2 PORTABLE RESTROOMS

PATH OF TRAVEL APPROX. 665'-0" 

Date

Drawn By

Checked By

Project Number

C
O

PY
R

IG
H

T 
  ©

   
BY

 A
R

C
H

IT
EC

TU
R

AL
 E

XP
R

ES
SI

O
N

S,
 L

LP
O

R
IG

IN
AL

 S
H

EE
T 

SI
ZE

:  
22

 X
 3

4

PRINTED ON

D
AT

E:

LI
C

. E
XP

, ;

A
C
H
IT
EC
TU
A
L

R
R

E
X
P
R
E
S
IO
N

L
L

S
S

P
A
R
C
H
IT
E

S
.
N
G

C
T

E
IN
E
E
R
S

ARCHITECTURAL EXPRESSIONS, LLP
100 CHESTNUT, SUITE 300, 

CHAMPAIGN, IL 61820
PHONE: 217-378-5300 FAX: 217-378-8512

www.aexllp.com
IL DESIGN FIRM No. 184-001487

9/1/2021 1:00:13 PM

SP102
AEX

JLK

09/01/21

6379

SI
TE

 P
LA

N
- P

AR
KL

AN
D

 C
O

LL
EG

E

C
EN

TE
N

N
IA

L 
PA

R
K 

PI
C

KL
EB

AL
L

C
O

M
PL

EX
- P

H
AS

E 
I

C
H

AM
PA

IG
N

 P
AR

K 
D

IS
TR

IC
T

PRELIMINARY

C
H

AM
PA

IG
N

, I
L

No. Description Date

 1" = 40'-0"1 SITE DIAGRAM - PARKLAND COLLEGE

0 20' 40' 80'

N
O

R
TH

W E

S

jwscheunemann
Cross-Out

jwscheunemann
Cross-Out



PROJECT COST OPINION

Project: DATE: 7/30/2021
Owner: AEX#: 6379

Description: OWNR#:
Court:  SF $/SF: N/A REV#:

% AMOUNT

Pre-Planning Cost N/A
Site Survey and Soil Investigation N/A Assuming surface removal and base reused
Site Preparation (Incl. Demolition/Disposal) Refer to Court Construction
Hazardous Materials Remediation (Allowance) N/A
Off-Site Work N/A

WORK ITEM ESTIMATE $/SF:
GENERAL- No Concession Building (2- Porta Potties  included) 28,000.00         -            

COURT CONSTRUCTION 315,017.72       -            $18,878 per court

SHELL
SUPERSTRUCTURE -                    -            
EXTERIOR CLOSURE -                    -            
ROOFING -                    -            

INTERIORS -                    -            
SERVICES

CONVEYING -                    -            
PLUMBING -                    -            No site irrigation or drinking fountains included
HVAC -                    -            
FIRE PROTECTION -                    -            
ELECTRICAL 96,625.00         -            
   Service Upgrade, Site Lighting

EQUIPMENT & FURNISHINGS -                    -            
SPECIAL CONSTRUCTION 57,360.00         -            
    Fencing 
SITE WORK 47,693.20         -            

544,695.92       -            544,695.92$              
General Contractor Markups (General Conditions, Overhead, and Profit) 15% 81,704.39$                

SUBTOTAL CONSTRUCTION RELATED ITEMS -            626,400.31$              
Fixtures, Furnishings and Equipment (FFE)
Architectural/Engineering ? Civil Fees 9% 56,376.03$                
Owner's Rep -$                          
Other Consulting Fees: -$                          
Other Reimbursables (Printing)
Bonds, Permits and Fees (not included in construction contracts)
Fixed Capital Equipment (not in construction contracts)
Building or Property Acquisition
Other Costs

SUBTOTAL PROJECT RELATED ITEMS -            682,776.34$              
Contingency and Covid Multiplier 15% 102,416.45$              

TOTAL FOR PROJECT -            785,192.79$              

Total Construction Contracts

ITEM

Parkland- Existing Tennis Courts
Champaign Park District
12 Court Pickleball Complex: 26112 SF

Summary Architectural Expressions Confidential Page 1



GENERAL- No Concession Building (2- Porta Potties  included)
   Main Bldg.: 2375 SF
   Pavillion/Breezeway: 576 SF
   Breezeway: 216 SF
   Total: 3167 SF
DESCRIPTION QUANTITY U UNIT COST COST
 Porta Potties ADA -Buy/ Leased 2 Each 2,000.00$    $4,000.00 

Sevice/Maint. 1x weekly 60 Months $400.00 $24,000.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 

CONSTRUCTION COST 28,000.00$       8.84$        SF



COURT CONSTRUCTION

DESCRIPTION QUANTITY U UNIT COST COST
$0.00 

Remove Existing Nets/ Posts/ Anchors Foundations 6 SET $4,000.00 $24,000.00 
Remove Existing Asphalt Pavement 4000 SY $6.00 $24,000.00 

$0.00 
Aggregate Base Course 2" Ave. 317 TON $51.00 $16,167.00 

Bit. Mtls. Prime Coat MC-30 721 GAL $6.00 $4,326.00 
HMA Bit. Binder Course 2" 324 Ton $130.00 $42,120.00 
Bit. Mtls. Tack Coat NTEA 290 GAL $8.00 $2,320.00 

HMA Bit. Surface Course 1 1/2" 362 TON $160.00 $57,920.00 
Install  foundations/Post/Anchors/ Nets/Etc. 12 SET $2,200.00 $26,400.00 

Paint Court color system/Stripping/Nets/ Posts/ Anchors 26,112 SF $2.60 $67,891.20 
$0.00 

Construction Layout 1 LS 6750 $6,750.00 
Mobilization of Equipment 1 LS 5000 $5,000.00 

$0.00 
Court Surface System(All Weather Court) 26,112 SF 1.46 $38,123.52 

$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 

CONSTRUCTION COST $315,017.72 26,251.00$   */SF



ELECTRICAL

DESCRIPTION QUANTITY U UNIT COST COST

Provide 600 Amp, w/ switchboard, underground 1 LS $6,625.00 $6,625.00 
LED Site Lighting Courts 12 LS $5,000.00 $60,000.00 

10 EACH $3,000.00 $30,000.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 

CONSTRUCTION COST 96,625.00$      

LED Site Lighting -To Parking Lot Parking  Path and path 
to Porta Potties



SPECIAL CONSTRUCTION

DESCRIPTION QUANTITY U UNIT COST COST
$0.00 
$0.00 

$0.00 
New Fence Screen 8' high 840 LF $42.00 $35,280.00 
New Fence Screen 4' High 960 LF $23.00 $22,080.00 

Acousti Screen $0.00 
Future-Shade Canopies 5 LS $0.00 

$0.00    No signage included

CONSTRUCTION COST $57,360.00 



SITE WORK

DESCRIPTION QUANTITY U UNIT COST COST
Temporay Construction Fence $0.00 

Future-Clean and Grub Site, parking area 0.5 Acre $0.00 Gross site 343,560 sf
Bulk Excavation $0.00 

Spread and compact dumped materials $0.00 
$0.00 

Future-Parking Lot for 18 cars,8" Base, 3" Bit. 18 PER CAR $0.00 
Future-24' wide Roadway Bit. 3- 1/2" 120 LF $0.00 

Concrete Sidewalks/Patios, 6" 4470 SF $8.66 $38,710.20 
Concrete Sidewalk to Parking Lot, 6" 500 SF $8.66 $4,330.00 

Fine Grading & Seeding 1100 SY $4.23 $4,653.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 

CONSTRUCTION COST $47,693.20 


	1. Board Mtg Summary Agenda.09.08.21
	A. CALL TO ORDER
	B. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC
	C. COMMUNICATIONS
	D. TREASURER’S REPORT
	E. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT
	F. COMMITTEE REPORTS
	G. REPORT OF OFFICERS
	Regular Board Meeting
	September 8, 2021
	Page 2
	H. CONSENT AGENDA
	I. NEW BUSINESS
	Staff recommends approval of disbursements for the period beginning August 11, 2021 and ending September 08, 2021. (Roll Call Vote)
	5. Approval of the Induction of Olympic and Paralvmpic Athletes into the Olympic Tribute
	Staff recommends the Board accept the FYE2021 GASB 75 Actuarial Valuation report as presented. (Roll Call Vote)
	Regular Board Meeting
	September 8, 2021
	Page 3
	J. DISCUSSION ITEMS
	K. COMMENTS FROM COMMISSIONERS
	L. ADJOURN


	1. boardminutes.8.11.21_gh
	August 11, 2021
	Mr. Bentz reported that funding from the American Rescue Plan is earmarked for distribution through the National Endowment for the Arts grant program. No local match is required and grant awards can be applied broadly to cover expenses such as artist ...
	Commissioner Kuhl requested clarification about the terms of payment for the grant award. Mr. Bentz responded that the Park District would be reimbursed for expenses.
	Vice President Hays made a motion to authorize staff to apply for the American Rescue Plan Grant in the amount of $150,000.00 from the National Endowment for the Arts in support of house-presented events at the Virginia Theatre. The motion was seconde...
	Executive Session
	Return to Regular Meeting


	2. specialminutes.8.25.21_gh
	August 25, 2021
	Executive Session
	Return to Regular Meeting


	5. 210901 martens center construction change orders broeren russo resolution MEMO
	5a. 210901 martens center construction change orders broeren russo resolution DRAFT 4820-6301-2601 v1
	5b. 210901 martens center construction change orders broeren russo resolution ATTACHMENT 01
	change order log

	5c. 210901 martens center construction change orders broeren russo resolution EXHIBIT A
	6. 09-01-2021 Memo to issue GO Bonds for 9-8-21 board meeting
	REPORT TO PARK BOARD
	Prior Board Action
	None
	Budget Impact
	Recommended Action

	6a. 2021 RESOLUTION Intent to Issue GO Bonds
	7. 09-01-2021 Memo to Setting Date for Public Hearing on Proposed GO Bond Issue at 9-8-21 board meeting
	REPORT TO PARK BOARD
	Prior Board Action
	None
	Budget Impact
	Recommended Action

	7a. 2021 RESOLUTION  Set Date for Public Hearing
	8. 8-29-21 Trails plan memo
	8a. 210820 north champaign trail easement board memo ATTACHMENT
	9. 8-13-21 Olympic and Paralympic Induction
	REPORT TO PARK BOARD
	3. Any unusual situations or circumstances will be considered.
	 Tatyana McFadden, Paralympic Athlete competing in Track and Field in Tokyo 2020.  Inducted into the Olympic Paralympic Tribute in 2016.
	 Brian Siemann, Paralympic Athlete competing in Track and Field in Tokyo 2020.  Inducted into the Olympic Paralympic Tribute in 2016.

	10. 09-01-2021 Memo to Accept GASB 75 Actuarial Valuation Report Report for FYE 4-30-2021
	REPORT TO PARK BOARD
	Budget Impact
	Recommended Action
	Staff recommends the Board accept the FYE2021 GASB 75 Actuarial Valuation report as presented.

	11. 6641-90 043021 Champaign Park District GASB 75 report (prelim) v2
	Comparison of Participant Demographic Information
	Detailed Actuary’s Notes
	Detailed Actuary’s Notes

	13. Annexation Ordinance No 654 edit 090221 4826-4031-8713 v1
	14. Surplus Ordinance 653 Tables and Trusses 08 29 2021
	REPORT TO PARK BOARD
	ATTACHMENT  A

	15. 9-8-21 Pickleball complex memo
	15a. 210831-6379 Estimate Comparrison
	15b. Copy of PIckleball sites 2109021
	Sheet1

	15c. 210901_centennial park
	15d. 210831-6379  Centennial Park Pickleball Complex Phase 1
	Summary
	Concession Bldg.
	Court Construction
	Electrical
	Special
	Site

	15e. 210901_parkland
	15f. 210831-6379 Parkland Estimate
	Summary
	General
	Court Construction
	Electrical
	Special
	Site




